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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

The Directors of the Company present their statértmyether with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group and statement of finarmaltion and statement of changes in equity of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 Decemb#&620

In the opinion of the Directors:

(@)

(b)

the consolidated financial statements of the Graogd the statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company tasugeon pages 12 to 123 are drawn up So as to
give a true and fair view of the financial positiofithe Group and the Company as at 31 December
2016, and the financial performance, changes ityegad cash flows of the Group and changes in
equity of the Company for the financial year thedexd; and

at the date of this statement, there are reasogableds to believe that the Company will be able
to pay its debts when they fall due.

Directors
The Directors of the Company in office at the dztéhis statement are as follows:

Mr Ong Beng Kheong (Chairman)

Mr William Nursalim alias William Liem (Chief Exesive Officer)

Mr Choo Teow Huat Albert

Mr Chow Kok Kee

Mr David Lee Kay Tuan

Ms Michelle Liem Mei Fung

Mr Neo Ban Chuan (Appointed on 1 July 2016)

Arrangements to enable Directors to acquire ben#$ by means of the acquisition of shares
and debentures

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at time during the financial year was the Company a
party to any arrangement whose object is to en#i#eDirectors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of sharesatredtures of the Company or any other body
corporate.



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

3 Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The Directors of the Company holding office at &mal of the financial year had no interest in the
share capital and debentures of the Company aglatied corporations as recorded in the Register
of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Companytha purposes of Section 164 of the Singapore
Companies Act (the “Act”) except as follows:

Names of Directors and companies Shareholdings rstered in Shareholdings in which Director is
in which interests are held name of Director deemed to have an interest
As at As at As at As at
1 January 31 December 1 January 31 December
2016 2016 2016 2016

The Company (Ordinary Shares)

Mr Ong Beng Kheong 2,200 2,200
Mr David Lee Kay Tuan 250,000 250,000
Ms Michelle Liem Mei Fung - -

Mr William Nursalim alias William
Liem -

546,383,829 546,383,829

546,383,829 546,383,829

SP Corporation Limited (Ordinary Shares)

Ms Michelle Liem Mei Fung 28,146,319* 28,146,319

Note

1 By virtue of interest in Nuri Holdings (Bje Ltd.

By virtue of Section 7 of the Act, Ms Michelle IoeMei Fung and Mr William Nursalim alias
William Liem are deemed to have an interest inGloenpany and in all the related corporations of

the Company.

There was no change in any of the above-menti@iegttors’ interests between the end of the
financial year and 21 January 2017.



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

4 Share options

During the financial year, there were no optiorenged to take up unissued shares of the Company
or any corporation in the Group.

During the financial year, there were no sharethefCompany or any corporation in the Group
issued by virtue of the exercise of an option ke tap unissued shares.

At the end of the financial year, there were nssued shares of the Company or any corporation
in the Group under option.

5 Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee performed functiopedfied in Section 201B (5) of the Act and
the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance.

The Audit and Risk Committee of the Company isirgtaby Mr Choo Teow Huat Albert and
includes Messrs Chow Kok Kee, David Lee Kay Tuad Beo Ban Chuan, all of whom are non-
executive Directors and the majority including @iegairman, are independent. The Audit and Risk
Committee met six times during the financial yeaded 31 December 2016 and had reviewed,
inter alia, the following with the executive Director, extatrand internal auditors of the Company
where relevant:

(a) the external and internal audit plans; thepoeaaf the internal audit procedures and results
of the internal auditors’ examination and evaluataf the Group’s systems of internal
accounting controls;

(b) the Group’s financial and operating resultd aocounting policies;

(c) the consolidated financial statements of theu@, the statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company bketloeir submission to the Directors
of the Company and the external auditors’ reporthmse financial statements;

(d) the quarterly, half-yearly and annual annoumeets on the results and financial positions
of the Company and the Group;

(e) the interested person transactions as speaifigigr Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing
Manual Rules

® the co-operation and assistance given by tlamagement to the Group’s external and
internal auditors; and

(9) the re-appointment of the external and inteanditors of the Group.



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS' STATEMENT
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

The Audit and Risk Committee has full access t lass the co-operation of the management and
has been given the resources required for it tohdigje its functions properly. It also has full
discretion to invite any Director and executiveiadf to attend its meetings. The external and
internal auditors have unrestricted access to tditAand Risk Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee has recommended e¢otinectors the nomination of Deloitte &

Touche LLP for re-appointment as the external awslibf the Group at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

6 External auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their williegs to accept re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Directors

e ——

Mr Ong Beng Kheong
Chairman

gy

L
Mr William Nursalim alias William Liem
Chief Executive Officer

26 January 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statésraTuan Sing Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comptiise consolidated statement of financial positiothef
Group and the statement of financial position o Bompany as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and ott@mprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement ¢f fas's of the Group and the statement of changes i
equity of the Company for the year then ended, aots to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies, asaéton pages 12 to 123.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated faianstatements of the Group and the statement of
financial position and statement of changes intgapfithe Company are properly drawn up in accocdan
with the provisions of the Companies Act, Chapter(the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a true and fawwof the consolidated financial position of theo@y and

the financial position of the Company as at 31 Ddwer 2016 and of the consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity andatiolated cash flows of the Group and of the change
in equity of the Company for the year ended on diade.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with SingapS8tandards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are fudhecribed in théuditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statementgection of our report. We are independent of theuf® in accordance with
the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory AuthoriGRA”) Code ofProfessional Conduct and Ethics
for Public Accountants and Accounting Entiti€aCRA Code”) together with the ethical requirenen
that are relevant to our audit of the financiatestzents in Singapore, and we have fulfilled oureoth
ethical responsibilities in accordance with thesguirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient gggt@priate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Deloitte & Touche LLP (Unique Entity No. TO8LLO721A) is an accounting limited liability partnership registered in Singapore under the Limited Liability Partnerships Act (Chapter 163A).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in oofegsional judgement, were of most significanceun
audit of the financial statements of the currerdry@hese matters were addressed in the contenrof
audit of the financial statements as a whole, arfdriming our opinion thereon, and we do not prewd
separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition of development properties

Revenue recognition from development propertiethéncourse of construction, based on the percentage
of completion (“POC”) method, is a key revenue atneof the Group. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to certification of the valtievork performed to date by third party quantity
surveyors or the total costs incurred to date aspeoed to the total budgeted costs of the develapme
projects as approved by management.

Significant judgements are required to estimatetdted budgeted contract costs which include estana
for variation works and any other claims from cantors. Any changes to the total budgeted contract
costs will impact the percentage of completionult&®y in an impact to the revenue recognised.

Our audit performed and responses thereon

We performed procedures to evaluate the designnaplémentation of the relevant controls put in plac
by the Group in respect of revenue recognition frirese development properties in the course of
construction. We reviewed management’s budgetetdestsnates for each of the development projects,
and assessed the reasonableness of the assungpttbastimates applied by management which included
key elements such as contractor costs, variatiorksy@xpected finance costs and property expenses,
taking also into consideration the need by managétoeaccount for any effects of significant or anal
events that occurred during the year. In additiea,also used the value of the work performed te,dat
compared to the budget sheet (i.e. contract cost)parformed arithmetic computations of the POC and
revenue to be recognised for the year.

We found management to have the relevant controfslace, and that the key assumptions applied by
management to be reasonable based on supportédst@ation available.

Further disclosures are made in Note 21 to thenfiish statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Valuation of completed properties held for sale

The Group has residential properties held for $adated mainly in Singapore. These development
properties are stated at the lower of cost andeadisable values. The determination of the eseohaiet
realisable value of these development propertietemendent upon the Group’s expectations of future
selling prices.

The weak demand of residential units and uncer&mionomic sentiments may impact and create
downward pressure on the prices of these propeifiesre is therefore a risk that the estimatesedf n
realisable values may exceed future selling prieesjlting in losses when properties are sold.

Our audit performed and responses thereon

We discussed with and challenged management omahkis used in their assessment in determining
whether the Group’s completed properties held &e are impaired and the amount of impairment to be
recorded if any, based on the Group’s estimatddahggbrices of these properties, by comparing where
available, to recently transacted prices and priafgsast sales of comparable properties in surrnmgnd
locations. We also performed sensitivity analysistite estimated selling prices used by management i
their assessment and considered the adequacy dfigbsures in respect of the impairment losses
presented in the financial statements for thespepties.

We found management’s estimates to be reasonabésl lman supportable information available, and that
management had applied its knowledge of the busimedetermining the estimated selling prices ef th
respective properties, where the management totk ancount the selling prices of past sales and
comparable properties, and expectations of thegptppnarket conditions. We found that the Group had
appropriately recorded the impairment loss in profi loss and found the related disclosures to be
appropriate.

Further disclosures are made in Note 8 to the iadustatements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Valuation of investment properties

The Group has investment properties stated atviire, determined based on professional external
valuers engaged by the Group.

The valuation process involves significant judgetr@erd estimation. The valuations are dependenti®n t
valuation methodology applied and these are undeegi by a number of assumptions which included
price per square metre of market comparables usmpifalisation rates; price per square metre of
gross/net lettable area; and with reference tostmrent property under redevelopment, costs to cet@pl
and gross development value. A change in the keymagstions applied may have a significant impact to
the valuation.

Our audit performed and responses thereon

We read the terms of engagement of the externakvalto consider the objectivity and independerice o
the external valuers, and also considered the fopzion and competency of the external valuers
engaged.

We considered the appropriateness of the valuagohniques used by the external valuers for the
respective investment properties, taking into antdhbe profile and type of the investment propesttie
We discussed with the external valuers on the tesiiltheir work, and compared the key assumptions
used in their valuations by reference to externailiplished benchmarks where available and congldere
whether these assumptions are consistent withutterd market environment.

For the investment property under development, Ve &valuated the Group’s estimated cost of
development and where relevant, agreed to thirty mamtracts for work contracted or to supportable
documents.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosarid® financial statements, in describing the iehe
degree of subjectivity and key assumptions in Sierates.

We found that the external valuers were recognmsetessionals with appropriate level of qualifioais

and experience. The valuation methodologies adoptee in line with generally accepted market

practices. The key assumptions used were withisoregble range, taking into account historical rates
and available industry data for comparable marleetd properties. For investment property under
development, the estimated total cost of developraed cost of work performed were supported by
third parties’ construction certificates and othlelevant documents. We also found that the related
disclosures in the financial statements to be aatequ

Disclosures on key assumptions and valuation teci®si of investment properties are found in Note 10
to the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Information Other than the Financial Statements andAuditor’'s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other informatibime other information comprises the Directors’
Statement but does not include the financial statesnand our auditor’s report thereon, which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’'s repartd the Company and Strategy, Highlights of tleary
Corporate Stewardship, Management Discussion andlysis, Sustainability Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholding Statistics reportsshwdiie expected to be made available to us afer th
date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does neécthe other information and we will not expresy a
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial stants, our responsibility is to read the otherrimfation
identified above when it becomes available andjaimg so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial staterseor our knowledge obtained in the audit, or othse
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on therdtifermation that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there igemal misstatement of this other information, we a
required to report that fact. We have receivediimectors’ Statement and performed our work ancehav
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the other information which are exgubtd be made available to us after the date sf thi
auditor's report, if we conclude that there is atemnal misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with g@arerx® and take appropriate actions in accordance
with SSAs. We have not performed our work at thie dé this auditor’s report.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for th Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparationr@ritial statements that give a true and fair view i
accordance with the provisions of the Act and FR®8g] for devising and maintaining a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to providereasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or dispositowl transactions are properly authorised and ket t

are recorded as necessary to permit the prepamaftivne and fair financial statements and to naamt
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, managenmgemesponsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as agpé¢canatters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless manageeitar intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative butdso.

The Directors’ responsibilities include overseeting Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurdmmet avhether the financial statements as a whae ar
free from material misstatement, whether due toadrar error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance ishalbigl of assurance, but is not a guarantee that a
audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will alwdgsect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and camesidered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected lieeirde the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, wer@sge professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. Vge:al

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstateérof the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedussponsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to mleva basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting framaudris higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentionahssions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relévarthe audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, butfaorothe purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poliogsd and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemen

Conclude on the appropriateness of management'®fudee going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whatheterial uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on thheup’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,ane required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the finansiatements or, if such disclosures are inadeqtate,
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based @naudit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or comaiti may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure amdera of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statemeqesent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

(H Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regaydhe financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to expres®p@inion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervisiod performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, amothgr matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including asignificant deficiencies in internal control thae
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement Wathave complied with relevant ethical requireraent
regarding independence, and to communicate witmth# relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independancewhere applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statemseof the current year and are therefore the kelitau
matters. We describe these matters in our auditep®rt unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremafg circumstances, we determine that a matter g¢houl
not be communicated in our report because the sevansequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefitsuch communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other recostpiired by the Act to be kept by the Company and by
those subsidiary corporations incorporated in $ioga of which we are the auditors have been prpperl

kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingsnridependent auditor’s report is Loi Chee Keong.

) NV

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

26 January 2017

11



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2016

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash and bank balant

Trace and other receivab
Amounts due from subsidiari
Inventorie:

Development properti

Total current asse

Non-current asset:

Property, plant and equipmi
Investment propertit

Investments in subsidiari

Investments in equity accounted inves
Deferred tax asse

Other nor-current asse

Total nor-current asse

Total asset:
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Loans and borrowint
Trade and other payab
Amounts due to subsidiar
Income tax payab

Total current liabilitie

Non-current liabilities

Loans and borrowint
Derivative financial instrumer
Deferred tax liabilites

Other nol-current liabilitie:
Total nor-current liabilitie:

Capital, reserves and no-controlling

interests

Share capiti

Reserve

Equity attributable to owners of ti
Compan

Non-controlling interest

Totel equity

Total liabilities and equity

Note

10
11
12
17

13
14
15

13
28
17
14

18
19

Group Company
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'00C $'00C $'00C $'00C
163,68 141,71 301 431
15879¢ 134,39( 7,99¢ 142
- - 255,46 285,74
3,56¢ 3,641 - -
183,232 336,13. - -
509277 615,88( 263,76: 286,321
419,27! 395,14¢ - -
1,108,65; 1,076,90 49¢ 49¢
- - 684,75! 661,90(
83,57¢ 71,51 - -
2,28¢ 3,04¢ - -
11 11 - -
1,613,80¢ 1,546,62! 685,25: 662,39
2,12308¢ 2,162,50! 949,01! 948,71¢
3,40¢ 428,92: - -
11233¢ 117,21. 20,0% 10,66
- - 265,95( 292,71t
22,29C 7,91¢ 52 17
13802¢ 554,05: 286,10: 303,39:
1,017387 677,41( 79,56: 79,40¢
1,01¢ 904 - -
35.73C 42,32( - -
462 362 - -
1,05459¢ 720,99t 79,56: 79,40¢
171,30t 17¢,23( 171,30¢ 170,23(
748,11¢ 706,57! 412,04 395,69:
919,42: 876,80! 583,34¢ 565,92:
11,03¢ 10,65: - -
930,45t 887,45 583,34¢ 565,92:
2,123,083 2,162,505 949,015 948,719

The accompanying notes form an integral part offit@ncial statements.

12



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Revenue

Cost of sale

Gross profit

Other operating incon

Distribution cost

Administrative expens

Other operating expens

Share of results @anequity accounted invesi
Interes income

Finance cos

Profit before tax and fair value adjustment:
Fair value adjustmer

Profit before tax

Income tax expens

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequentlgrifit or los:

Revaluation of propeies

Income tax relating to components of otcomprehensive income tl
will not be reclassified subsequer

Items that may be reclassified subsequently tatpyofoss

Exchange differences on translation of foreigeration:

Share of other comprehensive income of an equitgwatted investe

Cash flow hedge

Income tax relating to components of other comgnsive income thi
may be reclassified subseque

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of t:

Total comprehensiie income for the yea

The accompanying notes form an integral part offitencial statements.
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Note

21

12
22
23

24
25

28
28
28
28
28

28

28

Group

201¢ 201t

$'00C $'00C
404,01¢ 677,12.
(319639 (535,259
84384 141,86:
4,49(C 3,42(
(5,867 (4,355
(29,741) (25,672
(7,739 (10,085
1346¢€ 6,80:
4,46°¢ 4,25¢
(25,716) (27,529
37,74z 88,70
2,33€ (8,049
40,07¢ 80,65«
(6,272) (11,535
33.80¢ 69,11¢
16,98( 22,44
(5,094 (6,719
11,88¢ 15,72¢
4903 (9,450
2829 4557
(90) (904
27 271
7,669 (5,526
19,555 10,20:
53,361 79,32:




TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

INCOME
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Compal
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the Compal
Non-controlling interest

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in cent

Including fair value adjustments

Excluding fair value adjustmei

The accompanying notes form an integral part offitencial statements.
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Note

27

27

COMPREHENSIVE
Group
201¢ 201t
$'00C $'00C
3358t 68,83:
221 28¢€
33.80¢ 69,11¢
5297¢ 78,79¢
382 528
53,361 79,321
2.8 5.8
2.7 6.3




TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments fol
Fair value¢ (gain) . loss
Share of results (ar equity accounted invesi
Allowance for diminution in value for developmenbpertie:
Depreciatin of property, plant and equipm
Allowance for inventory obsolescence,
Allowance for doubtful trade and other receivabies
Write-back ofrecogniseccorporate guaranteno longer require
Net loss on liquidation of subsidiari
Net loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plard aguipmer
Interest incom
Finance cos

Operating cash flows before movements in working gatal
Development properties less progressive billinggirable
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Interest receive
Income tax pai

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipr
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equit
Additions to investment propert
Deposit paid for acquisition dand in Batar

Dividends and distribution received from an eqaitgounted
investee

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from loans and borrowi
Repayment of loans and borrowil
Interest pait
Bank deposits pledged as securities for bank fis
Dividend paid to shareholde
Shares bought back and cance
Net cash used in financing activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part offitencial statements.
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Note

12

18

Group
201¢ 201t
$'00C $'00C

40,07¢ 80,654
(2,336) 8,04¢
(1346€) (6,803
3,64¢ 8,93t
7,772 7,701

1 89

52 197

(445 -
1,79¢ -

5 (62)

(4,465 (4,258
25,71¢ 27,529
58,355 122,031
149,759 74,432
83 362
(12,424) (51,004)
(4,276) 2,685
191,497 148,50¢€
2,12¢ 10,100
(3,523 (6,303
190,103 152,308
(4,098 (3,319
64 241
(19,364 (10,341
(7,830 -

- 8,563
(31,228) (4,856)
98,16¢ 80,533
(192,611 (300,484
(34,161 (34,172
(32,922 30,196
(5,877 (4,911
(120° -
(167,525) (228,838,




TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning oféhe y
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part offitencial statements.
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Group
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
(8,650) (81,391)
105,675 187,414
(1,129) (348)
95,896 105,675




TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Attributable
Foreign to
currency Asset Other owners Non-
Share translation revaluation capital Revenue of the  controlling Total
Note capital account reserve _reserves® reserve Company interests Equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group 170,230 (23,722) 94,534 116,342 519,421 876,805 10,652 887,457
At 1 January 2016
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 33,585 33,585 221 33,806
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 28 - 7,571 - - - 7,571 161 7,732
Revaluation of properties 28 - - 16,980 - - 16,980 - 16.980)
Cash flow hedges 28 - - - (90) - (90) - (90)
Income tax adjustments relating to
other comprehensive income 28 - - (5,094) 27 - (5,067) - (5,067
Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax - 7,571 11,886 (63) - 19,394 161 19,555
Total - 7,571 11,886 (63) 33,585 52,979 382 53,361
Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Transfer from revenue reserve to
other capital reserves - - - 14,873 (14,873) - - -
Issue of shares under the
Scrip Dividend Scheme 18 1,196 - - - - 1,196 - 1,196
Shares bought back and cancelled 18 (120) - - - - (120) - (120
Dividend paid to shareholders
- Cash 20 - - - - (5,877) (5,877) - (5,877),
- Share 20 - - - - (1,196) (1,196) - (1,196),
Goodwill paid over acquiring
additional shares in a member of
associate 12 - - - (4,365) - (4,365) - (4,365)
Total 1,076 - - 10,508 (21,946) (10,362) - (10,362)
At 31 December 2016 171,306 (16,151) 106,420 126,787 531,060 919,422 11,034 930,456

# Details of “Other capital reserves” are disclosgtNote 19.

The accompanying notes form an integral part offth@ncial statements.
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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Attributable
Foreign to
currency Asset Other owners Non-
Share translation revaluation capital Revenue of the  controlling Total
Note capital account reserve reserves’ reserve Company interests Equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
At 1 January 2015 169,260 (18,592) 78,806 110,335 463,109 802,918 10,129 813,047
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 68,833 68,833 286 69,119
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations 28 - (5,130) - - - (5,130) 237 (4,893),
Revaluation of properties 28 - - 22,447 - - 22,447 - 22,447
Cash flow hedges 28 - - - (904) - (904) - (904)
Income tax adjustments relating to
other comprehensive income 28 - - (6,719) 271 - (6,448) - (6,448),
Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax - (5,130) 15,728 (633) - 9,965 237 10,202
Total - (5,130) 15,728 (633) 68,833 78,798 523 79,321
Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Transfer from revenue reserve to
other capital reserves - - - 6,640 (6,640) - - -
Issue of shares under the
Scrip Dividend Scheme 18 970 - - - - 970 - 970
Dividend paid to shareholders
- Cash 20 - - - - (4,911) (4,911) - (4,911),
- Share 20 - - - - (970) (970) - (970)
Total 970 - - 6,640 (12,521) (4,911) - (4,911)
At 31 December 2015 170,230 (23,722) 94,534 116,342 519,421 876,805 10,652 887,457

# Details of “Other capital reserves” are disclosgtNote 19.

The accompanying notes form an integral part offth@ncial statements.
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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Note

Company
At 1 January 201¢

Profit for the year, representing total comprehensie
income for the yea

Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Issue of shares under the Scrip Dividend Scl 18
Dividend paid to shareholde¢
- Casl 2C
- Shart 2C
Shares bought back and cancel 18

Total

At 31 December 201

At 1 January 201¢

Profit for the year, representing total comprehensie
income for the yea

Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Issue of shares under the Scrip Dividend Scl 18
Dividend paid to sharehold¢
- Cast 2C
- Shart 2C

Total

At 31 December 201

# Details of “Other capital reserves” are disclosgtNote 19.

Other

Share capital Revenue Total
capital reserve’ reserve equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
170,23l 101,26 294,42 565,92:
- - 23,42t 23,42t

1,19¢ - - 1,19¢

- - (5,877 (5,877)

- - (1,196 (1,196

(120 - - (120
1.07¢ - (7,073 (5,997
171,30t 101,26 310,77¢ 583,34!
169,26C 101,264 253,75¢ 524,28¢
- - 46,54¢ 46,54¢
970 - - 970

- - (4,911 (4,911

- - (970 (970,

97( - (5,881 (4,911
170,23l 101,26 294,42 565,92:

The accompanying notes form an integral part offitencial statements.
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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

1 General

Tuan Sing Holdings Limited (Registration number6900130M) is incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore with its principal place of business eagistered office at 9 Oxley Rise, #03-02 The Oxley
Singapore 238697. The Company is listed on thegpioge Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The
financial statements are expressed in Singapotarsgol

The principal activity of the Company is that oivéstment holding. The principal activities of its
significant subsidiaries and associates are diedlas Note 33 and Note 34 to the financial statémen
respectively. There have been no significant chanip the nature of these activities during the
financial year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Grangh statement of financial position and stateroént
changes in equity of the Company for the year erddeDecember 2016 were authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 26 January 2017.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(@) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared irr@acoe with the historical cost basis, except
as disclosed in the accounting policies below, ameddrawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Singapore Companies Act and Financial Remp&tandards in Singapore (“FRSs”).

Historical cost is generally based on the fair gatid the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddib @n asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participanthatmeasurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated gisinother valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Grougesiinto account the characteristics of the agset o
liability which market participants would take ind@count when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measuremediforarisclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determinedumih a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of FRS 3ld@re-based Paymeiéasing transactions that
are within the scope of FRS 1#&ases and measurements that have some similaritiegito f
value but are not fair value, such as net reaksablue in FRS Inventoriesor value in use in
FRS 36lmpairment of Assets
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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

(b)

(c)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, faglue measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which tpeatsto the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs ® fiir value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) itiv@anarkets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the mesmant date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted pricetuded within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dileor indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability.
Adoption of new and revised Standards

On 1 January 2016, the Group adopted all the nelwvewised FRSs and Interpretations of FRS
(“INT FRS”) that are effective from that date arré aelevant to its operations.

The adoption of these new or revised FRSs and IRBgdoes not result in changes to the
Group’s and the Company’s accounting policies aad ho material effect on the amounts
reported for the current or prior years.

Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financiatestznts, the following FRSs, INT FRSs and
amendments to FRS that are relevant to the Groaptla® Company were issued but not
effective:

«  FRS 10%inancial Instruments

. FRS 115Revenue from Contracts with Customers (with clzatfons issued)

+ FRS 116 ease?

. Amendments to FRS Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

* Amendments to FRS 1IAcome Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax AssetSoealised
Losse$

. Amendments to FRS 110onsolidated Financial Statements aRRS 28Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or ContributbAssets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Ventute

L Applies to annual periods beginning on or aftdafiuary 2017, with early application permitted.

2 Applies to annual periods beginning on or aftdafiuary 2018, with early application permitted.

3 Applies to annual periods beginning on or aftemfiuary 2019, with earlier application permittedRS 115 is
adopted.

4 Application has been deferred indefinitely, howeearly application is still permitted.
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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

Consequential amendments were also made to vasiauslards as a result of these new or
revised standards.

The management anticipates that the adoption olbloge FRSs, INT FRSs and amendments to
FRS in future periods will not have a material irttpan the financial statements of the Group
and of the Company in the period of their initidbation except for the following:

FRS 109%inancial Instruments

FRS 109 was issued in December 2014 to replace 3RS3nancial Instruments: Recognition
and Measuremerdnd introduced new requirements for (i) the cfasgtion and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities (i) geal hedge accounting (iii) impairment
requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of FRS 109:

In relation to the impairment of financial ass&RS 109 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model unéR8$ B9. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected cramisés and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changeseitit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit ewenhave occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Management anticipates that the initial applicatbthe new FRS 109 will result in changes to
the accounting policies relating to the impairm@nbvisions of financial assets. Additional
disclosures will also be made. It is currently ragiicable to disclose any further information on
the known or reasonably estimable impact to theu@mofinancial statements in the period of
initial application as the management has yet topiete its detailed assessment. Management
does not plan to early adopt the new FRS 109.

FRS 115Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In November 2014, FRS 115 was issued which eshadis single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arisirgmf contracts with customers. FRS 115 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidanckeiding FRS 18Revenuge FRS 11
Construction Contractsand the related Interpretations when it becomdsctafe. Further
clarifications to FRS 115 were also issued in ROTS.

The core principle of FRS 115 is that an entitydti@ecognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an ambatreflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thgseds or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition
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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

» Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

» Step 2: Identify the performance obligations ie tontract.

» Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

» Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to thegrenfince obligations in the contract.

» Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the esdiisfies a performance obligation.

Under FRS 115, an entity recognises revenue wheasfoa performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services ungied the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriggivdance has been added in FRS 115 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensiveldsires are required by FRS 115.

Management anticipates that the initial applicatbthe new FRS 115 will result in changes to
the accounting policies relating to revenue redibgmion sale of development properties.
Additional disclosures will also be made with redpw the sale of development properties,
completed property held for sale, trade receivalaled revenue, including any significant
judgement and estimation made. It is currentlyrawficable to disclose any further information
on the known or reasonably estimable impact ta3tmip’s financial statements in the period of
initial application as the management has yet taplete its detailed assessment. Management
does not plan to early adopt the new FRS 115.

FRS 116._eases

FRS 116 was issued in June 2016 and will superé&i® 17 Leasesand its associated
interpretative guidance.

The Standard provides a comprehensive model fordinatification of lease arrangements and
their treatment in the financial statements of He#isees and lessors. The identification of leases,
distinguishing between leases and service contrasdetermined on the basis of whether there
is an identified asset controlled by the customer.

Significant changes to lessee accounting are inted, with the distinction between operating
and finance leases removed and assets and ledbilécognised in respect of all leases (subject to
limited exceptions for short-term leases and lea$ésw value assets). The Standard maintains
substantially the lessor accounting approach utidepredecessor FRS 17.

Management is currently still assessing the passinbact of implementing FRS 116. 1t is
currently impracticable to disclose any furtheiommfiation on the known or reasonably estimable
impact to the Group’s financial statements in tedqa of initial application as the management
has yet to complete its detailed assessment. Mare&gedoes not plan to early adopt the above
new FRS 116.
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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

(d)

IFRS convergence in 2018

Singapore-incorporated companies listed on the 8@be required to apply a new Singapore
financial reporting framework that is identicalttee International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS") for annual periods beginning on or afteddnuary 2018. The Group will be adopting
the new framework for the first time for financisar ending 31 December 2018.

Based on a preliminary assessment of the potemmiphct arising from IFRS ZFirst-time
adoption of IFRS management does not expect significant changabeaoGroup’s current
accounting policies or material adjustments onditaon to the new framework, other than those
that may arise from implementing new/revised IFRSset out in the preceding paragraphs on
the equivalent FRSs.

Management is currently performing a detailed asialyf the transition options and other
requirements of IFRS 1. The preliminary assessrabove may be subject to change arising
from the detailed analysis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporagefinancial statements of the Company and
entities (including structured entities) controlladthe Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

* Has power over the investee;
* Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returnsfits involvement with the investee; and
* Has the ability to use its power to affect itsuraes.

The Company reassesses whether or not it contnatsvastee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the tHemeents of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

* The size of the Company’s holding of voting rigitdative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

» Potential voting rights held by the Company, otate holders or other parties;
» Rights arising from other contractual arrangemears
* Any additional facts and circumstances that indichat the Company has, or does not have,

the current ability to direct the relevant actiegtiat the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholdersétings.
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TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Caomabtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the sabsi®pecifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the yearincluded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income ftbendate the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the sabgidi

Profit or loss and each component of other comprailie income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interestdallcomprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and tantdrecontrolling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit inala.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the falestatements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s acctng policies.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in slidoges that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted foecpsty transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling iests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any diéfece between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the faiugabf the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to evmof the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gailoss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the agdgeeof the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained inteaesl (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of teebsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensizome in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposeédhe related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss wansferred to another category of equity as
specified/ permitted by applicable FRSs). TheValue of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is réga as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under FRSFa3®ancial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremamnt
when applicable, the cost on initial recognitioraafinvestment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’'s separate financial statementssiments in subsidiaries and associates are
carried at cost less any impairment in net recdateraalue that has been recognised in profit or
loss.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses areusmted for using the acquisition method. The

consideration for each acquisition is measuretie@aggregate of the acquisition date fair values
of assets given, liabilities incurred by the Graapghe former owners of the acquiree, and equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for obofrthe acquiree. Acquisition-related costs

are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

Where applicable, the consideration for the actjaisiincludes any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, medswat its acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjag@dst the cost of acquisition where they
gualify as measurement period adjustments (seevhel®he subsequent accounting for changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideratitiattdo not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consioieria classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasuredubsexjuent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Con¢ingconsideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent repgpudiates at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stdlge<zroup’s previously held interests in the
acquired entity are re-measured to fair value eitquisition date (i.e. the date the Group attains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if anyresognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acguisidate that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified toitpoofloss, where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities andtingent liabilities that meet the conditions fo
recognition under the FRS are recognised at theivalue at the acquisition date, except that:

» Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in anceraédth FRS 12ncome Taxesnd
FRS 19Employee Benefitespectively;

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to shhesed payment transactions of the acquiree or
the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based paymerds transactions with share-based
payment awards transactions of the acquirer inrdeowe with the method in FRS 102
Share-based Paymeat the acquisition date; and

» Assets (or disposal groups) that are classifietledd for sale in accordance with FRS 105
Non-current Asset Held for Sale and Discontinuecti@ponsare measured in accordance
with that Standard.

Non-controlling interests that are present owngrshierests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assetherelvent of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling netgts’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net asséts. choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of-cantrolling interests are measured at fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specifieahother FRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

If the initial accounting for a business combinatis incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Grogyports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisloamounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see below), or additional sissdiabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstarnbasexisted as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recogniseaf that date.

The measurement period is the period from the diagequisition to the date the Group obtains
complete information about facts and circumstanicasexisted as of the acquisition date, and is
subject to a maximum of one year from acquisitiated

Associates and joint venture (equity accountedsitges)

An associate is an entity over which the Groupdigsificant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and ofirgadecisions of the investee but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby therties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of th# prrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an ageament, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimousseahof the parties sharing control.

The results of and assets and liabilities of asdesior joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the eqoigthod of accounting, except when the

investment, or a portion thereof, is classifiechakl for sale, in which case it is accounted for in

accordance with FRS 10%on-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinupér@tions

Under the equity method, an investment in an aaooir a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial positiort@dt and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other cahpnsive income of the associates or joint
ventures. When the Group’s share of losses of swcage or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (whiokludes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investnieithe associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further Issgelditional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or consitrei obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venturacisounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an assariagoint venture. On acquisition of the

investment in an associate or a joint venture, exgess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the ideakfe assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included withire tbarrying amount of the investment. Any

excess of the Group’s share of the net fair valulbi® identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of investment, after reassessment, is recegiismediately in profit or loss in the period in

which the investment is acquired [Note 2(h)].
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The requirements of FRS 39 are applied to determimether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s invesitrin an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the imvest (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with FRS BBpairment of Assetas a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use andJalue less costs to sell) with its carrying
amount, any impairment loss recognised forms path® carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognisedccordance with FRS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subselguanteases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity methmud the date when the investment ceases
to be an associate or a joint venture, or wherirthestment is classified as held for sale. When
the Group retains an interest in the former assaagjoint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retainedest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial gg@ton in accordance with FRS 39. The
difference between the carrying amount of the aasoor joint venture at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value of estgined interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate iot jenture is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate or jeémture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensigcome in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be redjifithat associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. rétoee, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate ot y@nture would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets otitiabj the Group reclassifies the gain or lossrfro
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassificationustinent) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method wimemaestment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment ijpiat venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair wgdae such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest iasaociate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group ssifias to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognisemthier comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain orslegould be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

Where the group entity transacts with an asso@atmint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the@ase or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements onlyhi® éxtent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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(e)

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each groumity are measured and presented in the
currency of the primary economic environment in etththe entity operates (i.e. its functional

currency). The consolidated financial statementshef Group and the statement of financial
position and statement of changes in equity ofGbenpany are presented in Singapore dollar
which is the functional currency of the Company aiheé presentation currency for the

consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the irdlinal entities, transactions in currencies other
than the entity’s functional currency are recordethe rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporting pkrimonetary items denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated to the functional cagreat the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at falue that are denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailintpe date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms sibtical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement ohetary items, and on retranslation of

monetary items are included in profit or loss foe period. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at falue are included in profit or loss for the

period except for differences arising on the redl@ion of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other @mpsive income. For such non-monetary
items, any exchange component of that gain or ilsdso recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowirgjating to assets under construction for
future productive use, are included in the costhofse assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign oagyr&orrowings.

Exchange differences on transactions enteredintoder to hedge certain foreign currency risks
are described in the hedge accounting policiesibflmte 2(f)].

Foreign currency translation

For the purpose of presenting consolidated findrsta&tements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations (including comparativasy expressed in Singapore dollars using

exchange rates prevailing at the end of the repmprperiod. Income and expense items

(including comparatives) are translated at the agerexchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during thaiod, in which case the exchange rates at the
date of the transactions are used. Exchange difées arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a sepewatponent of equity under the header of

foreign currency translation account.
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(f)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a aligh of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of contoMer a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, loss of joint control over a joint ver&uhat includes a foreign operation, or loss of
significant influence over an associate that inetuid foreign operation), all of the accumulated
exchange differences in respect of that operatitibatable to the Group are reclassified to
profit or loss. Any exchange differences that hpreviously been attributed to non-controlling
interests are derecognised, but they are not sféasto profit or loss.

In the case of partial disposal (i.e. no loss afitem) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulaxetiamnge differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised ifipoo loss. For all other partial disposals (oé.
associates or joint ventures that do not resuthanGroup losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of accumulatetharge differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on #loguisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operadiod translated at the closing rate.

Net investment in foreign operations

On consolidation, exchange differences arising fithim translation of the net investment in
foreign entities (including monetary items that,substance, form part of the net investment in
foreign entities), and of borrowings and other eoay instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other compreherisi’geme and accumulated in a separate
component of equity under the header of foreigmenay translation account.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are grgsed on the Group’s statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to theraottal provisions of the instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of cakiy the amortised cost of a financial
instrument and of allocating interest income oremge over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discountsmased future cash receipts or payments
(including all fees on points paid or received tfmtn an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or digspthrough the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter periticome and expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis for debt instruments othan those financial instruments “at fair value
through profit or loss”.
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Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and de-recegnis a trade date where the purchase or sale
of an investment is under a contract whose termuaire delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, aaadinitially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except for those financial asdassified as at fair value through profit orslos
which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the followsmgecified categories: financial assets “at fair
value through profit or loss”, “held-to-maturitpiestments”, “available-for-sale” financial assets
and “loans and receivables”. The classificatiopeshels on the nature and purpose of financial

assets and is determined at the time of initiabgedion.

Financial assets at fair value through profit os®(FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL wherdihancial asset is either held for trading or it
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for tradihg) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or (ii) amtial recognition, it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Grouamages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) it is a dertive that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset letdrading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if (i) such designationnginates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise& or (ii) the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial liabilities both, which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance thighGroup's documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the girmy is provided internally on that basis; or
(i) it forms part of a contract containing one orore embedded derivatives and FRS 39
Financial Instruments Recognition and Measuremepermits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through profit aslare stated at fair value, with any resultam gai
or loss recognised in profit or loss. The net gaifoss recognised in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financiaetand is included in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Fair valugetermined in the manner described in
Note 32(e).

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Bonds with fixed or determinable payments and fixeaturity dates where the Group has a
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity atkassified as held-to-maturity financial assets.
Subsequent to initial measurement, held-to-matumigstments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairmerith revenue recognised on an effective
yield basis.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

Certain shares and debt securities held by the fzacei classified as being available for sale and
are stated at fair value. Fair value is determimethe manner described in Note 32(e). Gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value ecegnised in other comprehensive income with
the exception of impairment losses, interest catedl using the effective interest method and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetarysasbéth are recognised directly in profit or
loss. Where the investment is disposed of ortierdéned to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensierme and accumulated in revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrumeats recognised in profit or loss when the

Group’s right to receive payments is establishdte fair value of available-for-sale monetary

assets denominated in a foreign currency is deteanin that foreign currency and translated at
the spot rate at end of the reporting period. din@nge in fair value attributable to translation

differences that result from a change in amortisest of the available-for-sale monetary asset is
recognised in profit or loss, and other changeseegnised in other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Trade and other receivables that have fixed orret@ble payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as “loans and recéegdb Loans and receivables (including trade

and other receivables, bank balances and casin)easured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less impairment. Interest is reseghby applying the effective interest method,

except for short-term receivables when the recanif interest would be immaterial.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only winerontractual rights to the cash flows from

the asset expire, or it transfers the financiataasd substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If theup neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and consnimecontrol the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset arabsociated liability for amounts it may have to

pay. If the Group retains substantially all theksi and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recogniee financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issusdthe Group are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entetecmnd the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either fucal liabilities “at fair value through profit or
loss” or other financial liabilities.
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profibr loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL exf the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for ttmg if (i) it has been incurred principally foreth
purpose of repurchasing in the near future; oiit(i§ a part of an identified portfolio of finarati
instruments that the Group manages together and hecent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or (iii) it is a derivative that is not dgsated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial lialty held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if (i) such desigi@at eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that woolderwise arise; or (ii) on initial
recognition, the financial liability forms part afgroup of financial assets or financial liabiktie
or both, which is managed and its performance &uated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management orstnvent strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; io) it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and FRS 39 permitsritie €ombined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently stated at fair value, with any reatilgain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss ipovates any interest paid on the financial liapilit
and is included in the ‘other operating income argenses’ line in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Fair value israéed in the manner described in Note
32(e).

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measurefhiatvalue, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, usingeffieetive interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts ardallyit measured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, usingftaetive interest method. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costsjrensettlement or redemption of borrowings is
recognised over the term of the borrowings in ataoce with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs [Note 2(y)].

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are meagunitially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, subsequently at the highdghe amount of obligation under the
guarantee recognised as a provision in accordaitbd-®RS 37Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assetand the amount initially recognised less cumuéatamortisation in

accordance with FRS Bevenue
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities whang only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accaumti

The Group enters into a variety of derivative ficiah instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk, tholy foreign exchange forward contracts and
interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair valaethe date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured to their fairevatuhe end of each reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit osd immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrumenthich event the timing of the recognition in
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedigionship.

The Group designates certain derivatives as ditbdges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedgedhedges of highly probable forecast
transactions or hedges of foreign currency riskfimh commitments (cash flow hedges), or
hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

A derivative is presented as a non-current assed oon-current liability if the remaining
maturity of the instrument is more than 12 monthd & is not expected to be realised or settled
within 12 months. Other derivatives are preseatedurrent assets or current liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain hedging instrumerttsshwnclude derivatives and non-derivatives
in respect of foreign currency risk, as either failue hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net
investments in foreign operations. Hedges of fareggchange risk on firm commitments are
accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, theitgrdocuments the relationship between the
hedging instrument and hedged item, along withiisls management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Fumbee, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents whether theimgdgstrument that is used in a hedging
relationship is highly effective in offsetting clges in fair values or cash flows of the hedged
item.
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Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that asighated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in profit or loss for the period immedigteéogether with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged item that is attributable to the leedgsk. The change in the fair value of the
hedging instrument and the change in the hedged aé#ributable to the hedged risk are
recognised in the line of the statement of prafitoss and other comprehensive income relating
to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Groupkey the hedging relationship, the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or esed; or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. The adjustment to the carrying amadinthe hedged item arising from the hedged
risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair vahfethe derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in ottmnprehensive income. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognisedmediately in profit or loss as part of other
income and expenses.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive inconteaamecumulated in equity are reclassified
to profit or loss in the period when the hedgediis recognised in profit or loss in same line
item of the statement of profit or loss and oth@mprehensive income as the recognised hedged
item. However, when the forecast transaction ih&edged results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset or a non-financial liability, theiigs and losses previously accumulated in equity
are transferred from equity and included in théiahimeasurement of the cost of the asset or
liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Groupkey the hedging relationship, the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or esed; or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss accumulated in eqatityhat time remains in equity and when the
forecast transaction is ultimately recognised wfipor loss, such gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, or transferred from equity amgluded in the initial measurement of the cost of
the asset or liability as described above. Whenrachst transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was accatadlin equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operationsaao®unted for similarly to cash flow hedges.
Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relatiogthe effective portion of the hedge is
recognised in other comprehensive income and adatecuin the foreign currency translation
account. The gain or loss relating to the ineffecportion is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, and is included in the “fair value adjustnsédine of the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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(9)

Gains and losses previously recognised in otherpcenensive income and accumulated in
foreign currency translation account are reclasgiin profit or loss in the same way as exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation ascdbed in the accounting policy for foreign
currency transactions and translation as statéibia 2(e) to these financial statements.

Offsetting arrangements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are efffand the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when the Company and the @rbas a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and intends either tesmtth net basis, or to realise the asset and settl
the liability simultaneously. A right to set-offust be available as of the date of the reporting
rather than being contingent on a future event amgt be exercisable by any of the
counterparties, both in the normal course of bssrand in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy.

Property, plant and equipment
Measurement

Property, plant and equipment held for use in tteayction or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated at costdagssubsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes professional fees and for qualifyiagsets, borrowing cost, capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. [@efation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assetady for their intended use.

When parts of an item of property, plant and eqeiptrhave different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major componehpspperty, plant and equipment.

Revaluation

Certain land and buildings held for use in the patdn or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose, are stated in the statewfdiriancial position at their revalued amounts,
being the fair value at the date of revaluatioss lany subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revalgadie performed with sufficient regularity
such that the carrying amount does not differ nitgrfrom that which would be determined
using fair values at the end of the reporting pkrio

Any revaluation increase arising from the revahmaf such land and buildings is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in $setaevaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decreasthéosame asset previously recognised in profit or
loss, in which case the increase is credited tditpoo loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged to profit or loss. A decreasearrying amount arising from the revaluation
of such land and buildings is charged to profitass to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held in the asset revaluation reserve rela@iragprevious revaluation of that asset.
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(h)

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the @ystaluation of assets, other than properties
under construction and freehold land, over theimeded useful lives, using the straight-line
method, on the following bases:

Useful lives
Building on freehold land 50 years
Leasehold land, buildings and improvements Overdhmaining lease periods
ranging 3 to 99 years
Plant and equipment 1-15 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values andeségtion method are reviewed at each year
end, with the effect of any changes in estimatadpaccounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciatedtogir expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets or, if there is no certéhiatythe lessee will obtain ownership by the end
of the lease term, the asset shall be fully deptediover the shorter of the lease term and its
useful life.

Disposal

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirentdran item of property, plant and equipment is

determined as the difference between the salee@iscand the carrying amounts of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss. On the subeatisale or retirement of a revalued property,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaininghe properties revaluation reserve is transferred
directly to retained earnings. No transfer is méaen the revaluation reserve to retained

earnings except when an asset is derecognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is reuegd as an asset at the date that control is
acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is meaduras the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any nartrotling interest in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity e (if any) in the entity over net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable asaetpiired and the liabilities assumed.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest inférevalue of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets exceeds the sum of the consideration treedfethe amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value ofabguirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised imnbelgian profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impaént at least annually. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to eadhth® Group’s cash-generating units expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combinatioasiGgenerating units to which goodwill has
been allocated are tested for impairment annuatlynore frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverabteunt of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is alledatirst to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the othssets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An immpant loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amadigoodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

(K) Impairment of assets

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair valtautih profit or loss, are assessed for indicatbrs o
impairment at the end of each reporting periodafiaial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a re$wdhe or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, theimstted future cash flows of the investment have
been impacted.

For all other financial assets, objective evidentempairment could include (i) significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterpartgr (i) default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or (iii) it becoming probableat the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, suctrag®e receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assesedmpairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivedlcould include the group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the numtbatetayed payments, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditiored dorrelate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,atheunt of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the presdoe of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at costatheunt of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amountiamgresent value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of rrettor a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subseqpenibds.
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The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduby the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade resgles where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Whende treceivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recsvefie@mounts previously written off are
against the allowance account. Changes in theingrigmount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cosh & subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease catabedrobjectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previoustognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent the carryingoaint of the financial asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what thertes®d cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is amrsid to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in other comprehenst@me are reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets exclgaioodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Groupeesi the carrying amounts of its tangible and
non-tangible assets to determine whether themyisnalication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication existg thcoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairmers (@sany).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoveraphount of an individual asset, the Group

estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-gargeranit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation eaddntified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units (CGU), or ottise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent afion basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value lEssts to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows m®odnted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assassntd the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset for which the estimates tfreicash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU¥israted to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (CGU) is reduoetstrecoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unlé¢lse relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is tabatea revaluation decrease.
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(m)

(n)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,céinging amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised es@iroé its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed theiograynount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for thet dsash-generating unit) in prior years. A

reversal of an impairment loss is recognised imatetli in profit or loss, unless the relevant

asset is carried at a revalued amount, in whiclk tas reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives anthngible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually, and whenever theran indication that the asset may be
impaired.

Investment properties

Investment properties comprise completed propersdied properties under construction or
redevelopment held to earn rental and/or for chpipgreciation. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transactioosts. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair valangor losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are recognisedafitgyr loss for the period in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised upon disposahen they are permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expebtmah their disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the property (calculated as tlifedince between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included wfipor loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Transfers are made to or from investment propentiesn and only when there is a change in
use. For a transfer from investment property tm@woccupied property, the deemed costs of
property for subsequent accounting is its fair gadtl the date of change in use. For a transfer
from owner occupied property to investment propettye property is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy for propepignt and equipment [Note 2(g)] up to the
date of change in use.

Development properties

Development properties comprise properties in tbarse of development and completed
properties held for sale in the ordinary coursbusiness.

Properties in the course of development are statexbst plus attributable profits less progress
billing. Progress billings received from custompr®r to completion are presented as advance
billings within “trade and other payables” and mexs billings not yet paid by customers are
presented within “trade and other receivables”.
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(9))

(@)

Completed properties held for sale are stated eaidver of cost and estimated net realisable
value. Cost is determined by apportionment of tbeltland cost, development costs and

borrowing costs capitalised attributable to prapsrtNet realisable value takes into account the
estimated selling price, less cost to be incumeaharketing and selling, and the expected costs to
completion, where appropriate.

Cost of development properties comprises costsréfate directly to the development, such as
cost of land and construction and related costsafeattributable to development activities and
can be allocated to the development project, inctudttributable borrowing costs [Note 2(y)].

When losses are expected, full allowance are résedras expenses immediately based on best
estimates of net realisable value and estimatets tmsompletion.

Lands held for development and costs attributablthé development activities which are held
for future development where no significant develept has been undertaken is stated at cost
less impairment loss (if any).

The Group’s policy for revenue recognition in redatto development properties is described
under “Revenue recognition” [Note 2(w)].

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and reatisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and direct labour costs where applicabtethose overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present locatimmd condition. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Net realisable value represents the estimatedggtliice less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling amstribution. Allowance is made where
necessary for obsolete, slow-moving and defectiventories.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidatechstateof cash flows comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, bank overdrafts and other shontiéghly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are stiltge an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash and cash equivalents in the consolldatatement of cash flows exclude
encumbered fixed deposits.
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()

(s)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract caedtienated reliably, revenue and costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completidhe contract activity at the end of reporting
period, as measured by the proportion that contrast incurred for work performed to date
relative to the estimated total contract cost, pkeenere this would not be representative of the
stage of completion. Variations in contract worlairos and incentive payments are included to
the extent that the amount can be measured reketulyits receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cabeoestimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incutiret it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in tleelpén which they are incurred. When it is
probable that total contract cost will exceed totahtract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenewdeitims of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessdleother leases are classified as operating

leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leasesengmised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Financeslgamme is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of returntlwm Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised etraight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease unless another systematic basisne rapresentative of the time pattern in which
the benefit attributable to the leased asset isniBimed. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiatin
and arranging an operating lease are added to aihrging amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense over the lease term sariebasis as the lease income.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognisedsass of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the presesitie of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is includedie statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioeéglelen finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant faiaterest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance charges are charged directly piofit or loss, unless they are directly

attributable to qualifying assets, in which caseytlare capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowing costs [Note )R(¥ontingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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(t)

(w)

Rentals payable under operating leases are ch&wgawfit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease unless anotherregsie basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leassdet are consumed. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised psne&s in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are receiveghter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate bendfinoentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis, exceptrevienother systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which ecomdnainefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has &mrebligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that theupraill be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount oblbtigation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the béishas of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporiiegiod, taking into account the risks and

uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Whengravision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, itsyoday amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits requiedettle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable iogmised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount efréiteivable can be measured reliably.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the ceridn received or receivable for the sale of
goods and rendering of services in the ordinaryrsmwf the Group’s activities. Revenue is
reduced for goods and services tax, estimated mestoeturns, rebates and other similar
allowances.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount @ntevand related cost can be reliably

measured, when it is probable that the collectgbdi the related receivables is reasonably
assured and when the specific criteria for eachefGroup’s activities are met.
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Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised wih#mesfollowing conditions are satisfied:

» The Group has transferred to the buyer the sigmifi risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

» The Group retains neither continuing managerialvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the gosddd;

* The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

» |tis probable that the economic benefits assediatith the transaction will flow to the entity;
and

» The costs incurred or to be incurred in respetheftransaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of development properties

Revenue from completed properties is recognisedwine risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the purchaser either througlirémsfer of legal title or equitable interestin

property.

Revenue recognition on partly completed propertiekl for sale is based on the following
methods:

» For sale of partly completed development propgitieSingapore under progressive payment
scheme, profit is recognised upon the signing ¢& santracts and payment of the first
instalment which corresponds to 20% of the estichafit attributable to the actual sale
contracts signed. Subsequent recognition of piefitased on the percentage of completion
method as construction progresses. The percenfagerk completed is measured based on
the construction and related costs incurred to datex proportion of the estimated total
construction and related costs;

» For sale of partly completed development properiie Singapore under deferred payment
scheme and overseas development properties, @aicognised only upon the transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership of theperties to the purchasers.

In cases where transfer of significant risks amvdares of ownership coincides with the time the
development units are delivered to the purchasexgnue is recognised upon completion of
construction; and when legal title passes to theebor when equitable interest in the property
vests to the buyer upon release of the handovéareniat the buyer, whichever is earlier.
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Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is recognisedcicordance with the Group’s accounting
policy on construction contracts as disclosed iteNagr).

Revenue from hotel operations

Revenue is recognised when goods and servicesbeaveprovided to the customer and the costs
in relation to the goods and services can be Hgliaeasured.

Services rendered

Revenue from a contract to provide services isgeised by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract. The stage of completion of thetiaxt is determined as follows:

» Installation fees are recognised by referencentostage of completion of the installation,
determined as the proportion of the total time etgx to install that has elapsed at the end of
the reporting period except that revenue from sesviof short duration are recognised on
completion of services;

e Servicing fees included in the price of producbddsare recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the sems for the product sold, taking into account
historical trends in the number of services acyualbvided on past goods sold; and

* Revenue from time and material contracts is reiseghat the contractual rates as labour
hours are delivered and direct expenses are irturre

Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue framperating leases is described above in
Note 2(s).

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, byeaée to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investment is recognised withe shareholders’ rights to receive
payment have been established.
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v)

(@)

(aa)

(ab)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acgiog, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily takbstastial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost okthesets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or shilgestment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their exgiture on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisatio

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profiloss in the period in which they are incurred.
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increatesusts directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares and share options are recognised deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects. Dividends are deducted from shareholdeggiity and recorded as a liability when
declared payable. Proposed dividends which argesulbo shareholders’ approval are not
deducted from equity and are not recorded as iiizsil

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to defined contribution retirement bengffins are recognised as expenses when
employees have rendered the services entitling tteethe contributions. Payments made to

state-managed retirement benefit schemes, sucheaSihgapore Central Provident Fund, are

dealt with as payments to defined contribution plarhere the Group’s obligations under the

plans are equivalent to those arising in a defocwedribution retirement benefit plan.

Employees’ leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recodmigeen they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability faralle as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of reporting period.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the teently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable fpfofithe year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in profit or loss because itledes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further exchidems that are not taxable or tax deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculateging tax rates and tax laws that have been

enacted or substantively enacted in countries wither€€ompany and subsidiaries operate by the
end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on the difference betwd#e carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and theresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are gerrarecognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recoghiséte extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductildemporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if tmeprary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a businessnbination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable prajitthe accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxaelmporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, exgkete the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable thattemporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising fileductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only rasegro the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against whichudtlize the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foresetshle.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is wadeat the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer prob#ide sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates thatempected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or when the asset is realibaded on the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end ofreperting period. Except for investment
properties measured using the fair value modelpteasurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that wodlmivfdtom the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, tovecor settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liadsliand deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair valoéem the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, utileggrésumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depl#deiand is held within a business model of
the Group whose business objective is to consurbstautially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, eatihan through sale. The Group has not
rebutted the presumption that the carrying amotitite@investment properties will be recovered
entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset wiieme is a legally enforceable right to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilidied when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends tibesiés current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.
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Current and deferred tax are recognised as an sepmmincome in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items credited or debited outsidefipor loss (either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity), in which case thex ts also recognised either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, or whthey arise from the initial accounting for
business combination. In case of a business comnrinahe tax effect is taken into account in
calculating goodwill or determining the excesslod ficquirer’'s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities andtingent liabilities over cost.

(ac) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Groapeahgages in business activities from which
it may earn revenue and incur expenses, includiegerue and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Group’s other compaésien

The Group determines and presents operating segrbased on information that is provided
internally to the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO"Who is the Group’s chief operating decision
maker. All operating segments’ operating resulesraviewed regularly by the Group’s CEO to
make decision about resources to be allocateceteggments and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources afstimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting pielic which are described in Note 2, management is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumapéibout the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from atBeurces. The estimates and assumptions are based
historical experience and other factors that aresidered to be relevant. Actual results may diffem
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions arewedie®n an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in whichetanate is revised if the revision affects origtt
period or in the period of the revision and futpegiods if the revision affects both current antife
periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accourting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apadni those involving estimations (see below), that

management has made in the process of applyinGring’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised irfittencial statements.
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Termination of main contractor

In 2014, the Group terminated the services of ttaipus main contractor for Seletar Park Residence
on grounds of unsatisfactory performance. As aD8tember 2016, the ensuing legal and arbitration
proceedings were still on-going. After taking deegdl advice, the Group is of the view that it has a
reasonable chance of prevailing. Accordingly, navision was made in relation to such termination.
Legal and professional expenses of $6,472,000 (2015: $2,487,000) however have been recorded in

the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Key assumptions concerning the future, and otlegrdources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

reporting period, that have a significant risk atising a material adjustment to the carrying ansaht
assets and liabilities within the next financiahgeare discussed below:

Percentage of completion for revenue recognition

The Group uses the stage of completion methodceoumt for its contract revenue [Note 21] and
contract costs arising from the sale of developrpeoperties in Singapore under progressive payment
scheme that are within the scope as describedraggph 2 of the Accompanying Note to INT FRS
115 - Agreement for the Construction of Real Edjidtge 2(w)].

The stage of completion is measured by referemagettification of value of work performed to date.
Where there is no certification of value availalitee stage of completion is based on the respective
costs incurred to date as compared to the totagjdted costs of the development as approved by
management.

Significant judgements are required to estimaee tttal contract costs which include estimation for
variation works and any other claims from contrextoln making the judgements, the Group relies on
past experience and the work of specialists. Hheation of development properties and provisians f
foreseeable losses, if any, are therefore submalintcertainty in respect of variation works and
estimation of future costs. The Group adopts @gmtiapproach in evaluating these uncertainties.

The carrying amount of the Group’s developmentpprtes and revenue recognised based on the
percentage of completion are disclosed in NotedBNwte 21 to the financial statements respectively.
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Allowance for diminution in value for developmerdperties

Development properties in the course of developraed completed properties are stated at lower of
cost and estimated net realisable value, assessad individual property basis. When it is probable

that the total development costs will exceed thal tprojected revenue, the amount in excess of net
realisable value is recognised as an expense inateddi

The process of evaluating the net realisable valgach property is subject to management judgemen
and the effect of assumptions in respect of deveéop plans, timing of sale and the prevailing marke

conditions. Management performs cost studies foh gaoperty, taking into account the costs incurred
to date, the development status and costs to coenpdeh development property. Any future variation
in plans, assumptions and estimates can poteniialbact the carrying amounts of the respective
properties.

During the year, an allowance for diminution ifueaof $3,649,000 (2015: $1,200,000) was made on
Singapore development properties, taking into atcc@md with reference to past sales, comparable
properties, location and market conditions.

The carrying amount of development propertiesdiselosed in Note 8. Allowance for diminution in
value is recognised as “other operating expensegrofit or loss and disclosed in Note 25 to the
financial statements.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

The Group carries its hotel properties [Note 9 avestment properties [Note 10] at fair valuedaas
on independent professional valuations or intevahlations.

In determining fair values, the valuers have usalliation techniques (including direct comparison
method, income method, capitalisation method, distad cash flow method and residual land value
method) which involve certain estimates and sigaiit unobservable inputs which are disclosed ire$lot
9 and 10. The direct comparison method involvesatimalysis of comparable sales of similar propertie
and adjusting prices to those reflective of theestment properties. The investment method cagtals
income stream into a present value using single-ga@italisation rates. Capitalisation method Ines
assessment of the income earning capacity ancatisgdt it at the adopted capitalisation rate tovdes
core value. Discounted cash flow method recogniBestime value of money by estimating the net
present value of future cash flows. In the redidaad value method of valuation, the total gross
development costs and developer’s profit are deduitbm the gross development value to arrive @t th
residual value of the property under developmehé gross development value is the estimated vdlue o
the property assuming satisfactory completion efdbvelopment as at the date of valuation. Irimgly
on valuation reports, the management has exerdisgddgement and is satisfied that the valuation
methods and estimates are reflective of currenkebaonditions.

Information relating to the valuation techniquesl anputs used in determining the fair value ofehot

properties and investment properties are disclosellotes 9 and 10 respectively to the financial
statements.
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Deferred tax liabilities arising from increasetime carrying amount of investment in Grand Hoteb@yr

The Group’s interest in Grand Hotel Group (“GHGA$) held by TSH Australia Holdings Pte Ltd
(“TAHAUD"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Compgnthrough Tuan Sing (Australia) Trust
(“TSAT") and Tuan Sing Real Estate Trust (“TSRET"GHG comprises of the Grand Hotel Trust
(“GHT”) and its controlled entities and Grand HoBgmpany Pty Ltd (“GHC”) and its controlled entgie
The units in GHT are ‘stapled’ to the shares of GIBEIT is not liable for tax under the Australiam ta
legislation provided the taxable income (includamy assessable component of capital gains frono$ale
investment assets) is fully distributed to unitdest in each year.

TAHAUD is subject to income taxes in the Austmaljarisdiction. The Group has estimated defereed t
liability arising from an increase in the carryimgnount of its investments in GHG amounting to
A$32,509,000 (2015: A$27,469,000) or equivalentdd,034,000 (2015: $27,969,000) [Note 17]. In
estimating this amount, the Group considers thatiaxgains to be the excess of Group’s share dathe
value of net assets of GHG over the tax cost bt securities in GHG held by the Group.

Future actual tax liability when incurred and pdgalill differ from this estimate to the extent thhe
future realisation of values from the investmenBGiiG differs from the amount of fair value of thesets
currently estimated. It would similarly be affettey any change in tax losses and tax base whioh ha
yet to be agreed with the Australian tax autharitie

Recoverability of investments in and amounts du® Bubsidiaries in the Company’s financial stateisien

Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due frdsigiaries are tested for impairment whenevesetiser
any objective evidence or indication that thesetasmay be impaired. The recoverable amountseskth
assets have been subsequently determined basail waldie less costs to sell. A dormant subsydizd
been put to members’ voluntary liquidation as altes which, the Company recognised an impairment
loss of $6,132,000 for the investment but a gai®7¥82,000 under the inter-company balance waiyed
the subsidiary. The Company made a write-backhgrairment loss made in prior years of $7,337,000
(2015: impairment loss of $1,178,000) for investteeim subsidiaries, and an impairment loss of
$1,509,000 (2015: $1,520,000) for amount due fraMosgliaries in 2016. The carrying amounts of
investments in subsidiaries and amounts due frdmsidiaries are disclosed in Notes 11 and 15 to the
financial statements respectively.

Allowance for doubtful receivables and refundaldepakit

Allowance for doubtful receivables and refundad#posit are based on an evaluation of the colldityab

of receivables. A considerable amount of judgeneméquired in assessing the ultimate realisation
these receivables, including current creditwortksng@ast collection history of each customer anpbioigy
dealings with them. If the financial conditions thie customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, aiddial allowance may be required. The carrying
amount of trade and other receivables are discliosidte 6 to the financial statements.

51



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

4 Segment information

Products and services from which reportable segméetive their revenue

For management purpose, the Group is organisedsirategic business units based on their proc
and services. The Group’s principal business dipgraunits, durig and at the end of the report
period, are Property, Hotels Investment, IndustBafvices and Other Investments. Accordingly,
Group’s reportable operating segments under FRSd€8s follows:

Segment Principal activities
Property Development of properties for sale, prop@wvestment and provision of property
management services.

Hotels Investment Investment in hotels in Australia

Industrial Services Trading and marketing of indastommodities, distribution of tyres and re-tlea
of tyres, as well as manufacturing of polypropylev@/en bags.

Other Investment Investments in GulTech, a primieclit boards manufacturer with operations in

Singapore and China
Corporate and Others Provision of corporate-legglises.

Segnent revenue represents revenue generated frormakeend internal customers. Segment p
represents the profit earned by each segmentalfteation of central administrative costs and ffice
costs. This is the measure reported to the chgefaing decision maker for the purpose of resol

allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Management monitors the operating results of edciisdusiness unit for the purpose of mak
decisions on resource allocation and performansesamein Corporate and Others are managed
group basis and are not allocated to operating eetgn Segment assets and liabilities are pres
net of inter-segment balances. Inter-segmentris determined on arm’s length basis.

Information regarding each of the Group’s repoga@gments is presented below.
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Segment revenues and results

Corporate Inter-
Hotels Industrial Other and Segnent Total
Property  Investment Services Investment Others?  Eliminations  Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2016
Revenue
External revenue 129,084 140,606 134,148 - 180 - 404,018
Inter-segment revenue 923 - - - 18,070 (18,993) -
130,007 140,606 134,148 - 18,250 (18,993) 404,018
Results
Gross profit 33,193 41,818 5,643 - 10,782 (7,052) 84,384
Other operating income 1,637 1,411 963 445 22,816 (22,782) 4,490
Distribution costs (3,362) - (2,505) - - - (5,867)
Administrative expenses (10,620) (11,197) (3,678) 1 (2,300) (1,947) (29,741)
Other operating expenses (12,031) (1,641) (49) (1,794) (7,918) 15,694 (7,739)
Share of results
of an equity accounted
investee - - - 13,466 - - 13,466
Interest income 4,113 27 1,840 - 5,214 (6,729) 4,465
Finance costs (8,808) (18,503) (9) - (5,125) 6,729 (25,716)
Profit before tax
and fair value adjustments 4,122 11,915 2,205 12,118 23,469 (16,087) 37,742
Fair value adjustments 1,910 288 - 138 - - 2,336
Profit before tax 6,032 12,203 2,205 12,256 23,469 (16,087) 40,078
Income tax expenses (2,989) (2,702) (537) - (44) - (6,272)
Profit for the year 3,043 9,501 1,668 12,256 23,425 (16,087) 33,806
Profit attributable to
Owners of the Company 3,159 9,501 1,331 12,256 23,425 (16,087) 33,585
Non-controlling interests (116) - 337 - - - 221
Profit for the year 3,043 9,501 1,668 12,256 23,425 (16,087) 33,806

Notes
1. No revenue is reported under “Other Investmentttas Group equity accounts for its investment inT@ah.

2. “Corporate and Others” refers to the aggregation mfovision of corporate-level services by the Conypto the various subsidiaries
and charged as such. They are eliminated at gteupl upon consolidation.
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Notes

Segment revenues and results (cont'd)

2015
Revenue

External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Results
Gross profit
Other operating income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Share of results
of an equity accounted
investee
Interest income
Finance costs
Profit before tax
and fair value adjustments
Fair value adjustments
Profit before tax
Income tax expenses
Profit for the year

Profit attributable to
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Profit for the year

Corporate Inter-

Hotels Industrial Other and Segment Total

Property  Investment Services Investments Others?  Eliminations  Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
403,121 145,479 128,342 - 180 - 677,122
904 - - - 51,066 (51,970) -
404,025 145,479 128,342 - 51,246 (51,970) 677,122
80,534 44,349 6,108 - 43,896 (33,024) 141,863
2,375 309 722 - 7,557 (7,543) 3,420
(1,758) - (2,597) - - - (4,355)
(6,744) 9,772) (3,690) ®) (2,277) (3,186) (25,672)
(9,343) (574) (157) - (2,709) 2,698 (10,085)

- - - 6,803 - - 6,803

4,851 85 983 - 3,974 (5,635) 4,258
(9,556) (19,679) (24) - (3,877) 5,607 (27,529)
60,359 14,718 1,345 6,800 46,564 (41,083) 88,703
1,167 (9,096) - (120) - - (8,049)
61,526 5,622 1,345 6,680 46,564 (41,083) 80,654
(11,087) (373) (59) - (16) - (11,535)
50,439 5,249 1,286 6,680 46,548 (41,083) 69,119
50,440 5,249 999 6,680 46,548 (41,083) 68,833
1) - 287 - - - 286
50,439 5,249 1,286 6,680 46,548 (41,083) 69,119

1. No revenue is reported under “Other Investmentttas Group equity accounts for its investment inT@ah.

2. “Corporate and Others” refers to the aggregation pfovision of corporate-level services by the Conypdo the various
subsidiaries and charged as such. They are elitathat group-level upon consolidation.
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Note:

Segment assets, liabilities and other segmentnmdtpn

2016

Assets

Segment assets

Investments in an equity accounted investee
Total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Income tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Other information

Capital expenditure

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Allowance for diminution in value for

development preerties
Write-back of recognised corporate guarantee

no lonaer require

Revaluation gain of properties

Fair value gain on investment
properties

Fair value gain on financial instruments

2015

Assets

Segment assets

Investments in an equity accounted investee
Total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Income tax payable and deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Other information

Capital expenditure

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Allowance for diminution in value for
development properti

Revaluation gain of properties

Fair value (gain) / loss on investment
properties

Fair value loss on financial instruments

Corporate

Hotels Industrial Other and Total

Property  Investment Services  Investment Others  Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,281,248 665,025 84,515 - 8,716 2,039,504
- - - 83,579 - 83,579
1,281,248 665,025 84,515 83,579 8,716 2,123,083
(56,713) (22,649) (25,247) (5,432) (3,773) (113,814)
(570,896) (370,335) - - (79,562) (1,020,793)
(21,925) (35,337) (619) - (139) (58,020)
(649,534) (428,321) (25,866) (5,432) (83,474) (1,192,627)
631,714 236,704 58,649 78,147 (74,758) 930,456
59 4,012 27 - - 4,098

203 7,155 414 - - 7,772
3,649 - - - - 3,649

- - - 445 - 445

- 16,980 - - - 16,980
1,910 288 - - - 2,198

- - - 138 - 138
1,430,010 638,507 83,549 14 (61,086) 2,090,994
- - - 71,511 - 71,511
1,430,010 638,507 83,549 71,525 (61,086) 2,162,505
(58,176) (23,572) (26,970) (5,909) (3,853) (118,480)
(667,137) (359,793) - - (79,404) (1,106,334)
(20,072) (29,746) (288) (24) (104) (50,234)
(745,385) (413,111) (27,258) (5,933) (83,361) (1,275,048)
684,625 225,396 56,291 65,592 (144,447) 887,457
184 2,723 412 - - 3,319

148 7,108 445 - - 7,701
8,935 - - - - 8,935

- 22,447 - - - 22,447
(1,167) 9,096 - - - 7,929

- - - 120 - 120

1. No capital expenditure and depreciation are repdnteder “Other Investment” as the Group equity asats for its investme in GulTech.

55



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

Geographical information

Geographicall, management reviews the performance of the bssiasein Singapore, Australia, Chi
Malaysia, Indonesia, Europe and other ASEAN coeastri

In presenting information on the basis of geogreghsegments, segment revenue is based ¢
geographical location of external customers. Moment assets are based on the geographicaldo
of the assets.

Revenue from

Non-current assets
external customers

2016 2015 2016 2015

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Singapore 202,779 469,237 959,520 923,595
Australia 140,60t 145,47 646,30( 614,40
Chine 26,40: 16,586 6,44 6,811
Malaysi: 16,52( 16,863 1,53¢ 1,789
Indonesii 9,25¢ 13,45: - -
Europt - 7,452 - -
Other ASEAN countrie® 7,35( 6,811 - -
Other: 1,10¢ 1,241 - -

404,018 677,122 1,613,806 1,546,625

Note:

1. Other ASEAN countries comprise Vietnam, Camb@&tianei and Laos with revenue in each country tituisig not more than 1% of
total Group revenu

Other segment information

Included in the Group revenue of $404.0 million ¥20$677.1million) were sales of approximate
$44.7 million (2015: $45.5 million) to the Groupgse major customehat contributed 10% or more
the Group’s revenue.
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5 Cash and bank balances

Group Company
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash at banks and on hand 39,271 80,102 301 431
Fixed deposits 117,323 37,365 - -
Amounts held under the
Housing Developers
(Project Account) Rules 7,094 24,250 - -
163,68t 141,71 301 431

Cash and bank balances comprise cash and fixedsitefheld by the @up which are readil
convertible to a known amount of cash and are stlfean insignificant risk of changes in val
Deposits earned interest ranging from 0.1% to 3pé%annum (2015: 0.1% to 4.386r annum) an

for tenures ranging from 7 days to 3 years (201days to 3 years).

Withdrawals of amounts held under the project anto@re restricted to payments for expendi
incurred on development properties and are sultgedhe provisions in the Housing Develop

(Project Account) Rules in Singapore.

The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balamgpsximate their fair values at the end of
reporting period. Further details regarding thpasxre to interest rate risk, contractual and &ffe
interest rates and foreign currenggnomination of the cash and bank balances aréosigt unde

Note 32 to the financial statements.
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Cash and cash equivalents

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

For the purpose of the consolidated statement eh ddows, the consolidated cash and «

equivalents comprise the following:

Group

201¢€ 201¢

$'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents per consolidated

statement of cash flows
Cash and bank balances (as per statements otith@osition) 163,688 141,717
Encumbered fixed deposits and bank balances (67,792) (36,042)
95,89¢ 105,67!

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and emqgialents placed with banks in China
amounting to $80,344,000 (2015: $82,777,000), dpatriation of which into Singapore is subject to
the Foreign Exchange Control Regulations in Chifaf which amount, $65,052,000
(2015: $32,550,000) were fixed deposits for tenuagging from 1 to 3 years (2015: 1 to 3 years) but
were classified as current on the basis that thenepledged to secure a facility in Singapore which
could be cancelled at short notice by the borrcamet the sum of deposits released without significan
penalty and changes in value.

As at 31 December 2016, cash and bank balanceswimgpto $77,703,000 (2015: $51,762,000) was
pledged to banks to secure credit facilities arslgieated for specific operations. Information rielgt
to the Group’s loans and borrowings is discloselate 13 to the financial statements.

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Encumbered fixed deposits and bank balances 67,792 36,042
Cash and bank balances designated for specifraitqes 9,911 15,720
77,70: 51,76:.
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6 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
Note 201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade
Trade debtors 108,216 92,990 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (179) (272) - -
108,03" 92,71¢ - -
Amounts due from related parties 16 12,209 7,768 - -
120,246 100,48t - -
Non-trade
Deposits 13,219 6,099 7,903 73
Prepayments 3,567 3,183 131 141
Interest receivables 2,338 30 - -
Sundry debtors 6,922 6,995 32 -
Advances to suppliers 103 3,936 - -
Tax recoverable 110 125 - -
26259 20,36¢ 8,066 214
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (124) (77) (72) (72)
26135 20,29: 7,9¢4 142
Amount due from related parties 16 12,412 13,613 - -
38547 33,90« 7,94 142
158,743 134,39( 7,94 142

Trade Debtors

Included in the trade debtors were unbilled reddes of $64,547,000 (2015: $44,929,000) related to
the remaining sales consideration on completedldewent properties for sale.

An amount of $1,963,000 in previous year’s finahsiatements has been reclassified from “Trade

receivables” to “Amounts due from related partiesrade” following a corporate transaction in
December 2015 involving a director and his assediabmpanies [Note 16].
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Deposits in respect of acquisition of lands

Included in the carrying amount of deposits aslab8cember 2016 were deposits amounting to:

a) $7,830,000 (2015: $Nil) paid to a related party floe purchase of shares in two Singapore-
incorporated companies whose subsidiary is theflmgleowner of four plots of land in Batam,
Indonesia. The acquisition has not been completéiae end of the reporting period; and

b) $4,983,000 (2015: $5,186,000) relating to land &iten Jiaozhou, China. This includes a plot
of land of approximately 60,200 square metres (2@5200 square metres) which had been
secured by the Group pending the issuance of titktite deeds.

The deposits have been assessed to be placed uwithtecparties that are creditworthy and
accordingly, no allowance for potential non-recgvef the deposit is required.

Amounts due from related parties - trade

Included in the carrying amount as at 31 Decemifdi62wvere unbilled rent revenue of $221,000
(2015: $221,000) relating to rent-free period git@melated party lessees [Note 16].

Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2016, trade and other receivanhesinting to $10,530,000 (2015: $10,736,000)
included in the above balances were mortgaged mdsbto secure credit facilities for the Group.
Information relating to the Group’s loans and bwirgs is disclosed in Note 13 to the financial
statements.

Analysis of allowance for doubtful receivables:

Group Company
Note 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Trade (279) (272) - -
Non-trade (124) (77) (72) (72)
(303) (349) (72) (72)
Movements in allowance for
doubtful receivables
At 1 January (349) (306) (72) (72)
Exchange differences on
consolidation 8 2 - -
Amounts written off 90 152 - -
Allowance made 25 (52) (297) - -
At 31 December (303) (349) (72) (72)
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The carrying amount of trade and other receivabfgsoximates their fair values at the end of
reporting year. Further details regarding the expe to foreign currency denominated trade androthe
receivables are disclosed in Note 32 to the firdrstatements.

Analysis of trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing andyemerally on 7 to 120 days (2015 to 120 days
credit term. They are recognised at their originabice amounts which represent their fair value
initial recognition. The Group assesses the p@teotistomer’s credit quality and determines cr
limits to be allowed before accepting any new cmsio Credit limits granted to customers
reviewed regularly.

The Group’s trade receivables that were impairetthe@end of the reporting period and the allow:
for doubtful receivables are disclosed below:

Group

2016 2015

$'000 $'000
Trade receivables, net
Not past due and not impaired 102,961 81,455
Past due but not impairé€d 17,285 19,031

120,246 100,486
Impaired receivables - collectively asses¥ed 160 254
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (160) (254)

Impaired receivables - individually assessed
Past due for more than 36 months or no respongpayment

demands’ 19 18
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (19) (18)

120,246 100,486

Notes:

(i) Aging of trade receivables that were past biuenot impaired:

< 3 months 11,108 10,854
3 months to 6 months 2,533 4,321
6 months to 12 months 3,442 3,513
> 12 months 202 343

17,285 19,031

(i) The amounts stated were before deductionnimairment losses
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The Group had trade receivables amounting to $5/028 (2015: $19,031,0D@hat were past due
the end of the reporting period but not impairddhese receivables are unsecured and the analy
their aging at the end of the reporting periodissldsed in Note (i) above.

Trade and other receivables that are individuadlyeased to be impaired at the end of the repc
period relate to debts that are in significant financial difficultieand have defaulted on payme
These receivables are not secured by any collaiekdit enhancements.

Allowances for doubtful trade and other receivaldes recognised for the estimated irrecovierab
amounts from the sale of goods and services redd&freese allowances for doubtful trade and ¢
receivables are determined by assessing the poffdebtors and after considering recovery prosp
Further details regarding the credit risk for trae other receivables are disclosed in No{e)3® the
financial statements.

7 Inventories
Group
At net
At realisable
cost value Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
2016
Raw materials 988 - 9088
Work-in-progress 977 - 977
Finished goods 1,557 42 1,599
3,522 42 3,564
2015
Raw materials 906 - 906
Work-in-progress 963 - 963
Finished goods 1,537 235 1,772
3,40¢ 235 3,641

The net realisable values of inventories weresdtaet of allowance of $43,000 (2015: $196,000).

During the year, an allowance for inventory obstdese amounting to $1,000 (2015: $89)0G@s
recognised as “other operating expenses” in poofibss [Note 25].
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Details of collaterg

As at 31 December 2016, inventories amounting #8%100 (2015: $831,000) included in the ak
balances were mortgaged to banks to secure ceailities for the Group. Information relating tce
Group’s loans and borrowings is disclosed in N@éalthe financial statemer

8 Development properties

Properties in the course ofvelopmen
Land held for future developme

Completed properties held for <

Represented by

Properties in the course of development in Singapor
Land held for future development in Ch

Completed propertic held for sal in Singapor
Completed properticheld for sal in Chine

Group

201¢ 201t

$'00C $'00C
56,16¢ 303,68(
18,647 19,23t
74,813 322,91!
108,41¢ 13,21°
183,222 336,13.
56,16¢ 303,68(
18,647 19,23t
104,31( 8,94t
4,10¢ 4,27:
183,232 336,13:

Development propertiecomprise properties in the course of develop, land held for futur
development, and completed properties held for. s@ileese properties have operating cycles lo
than one year. Development properties are cladsifiecurrent assets as they aterided for sale i

the Group’s normal operating cyc

Properties in the course of development and lard fog future developme

Land cos
Development cost incurred-date
Interest and othe

Add: Attributable profi

Less: Progress billings received and receiv
Less: Allowance for diminution in value
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Group

201¢ 201

$'00C $'00C
79,72¢ 341,63¢
97¢ 143,84
1,484 21,08¢
82,11 506,57-
- 106,99:
- (281,773
(7,318) (8,879
74,813 322,91t
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Completed properties held for sale

Group
Note 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000

Completed properties, at cost 113,105 13,217
Less: Allowance for diminution in value (4,686) -

108,419 13,217
Movements in allowanceor diminution in value
At 1 January (8,879) -
Exchange difference on consolidation 301 56
Allowance made during the year 25 (3,649) (8,935)
Utilisation during the year 163 -
At 31 Decembe (12,069 (8,879

Interest costs capitalised during the year was481080 (2015: $4,831,0D@t effective interest ra
ranging from 1.9% to 2.0% per annum (2015: 1.7%.686 per annum) [Note 23].

The following table provides information on propestin the course of developmetd land held fc
future development of which revenue is recognised)dransfer of significant riskand rewards «
ownership at completion, and ii) as constructiongpesses:

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownersip
at completion:
Land cost 24,405 25,357
Development cost incurred to-date 786 818
Interest and others 834 739
Less: Allowance for diminution in val (7,378) (7,679)
18,647 19,235
Continuous transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership as construction progresses:
Cost incurred plus attributable profit 56,166 586,653
Progress billings received and receivable - (281,773)
Less: Allowance for diminution in value - (1,200)
56,16¢ 303,68(
74,813 322,915
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Allowance for diminution in value

The allowance for diminution in value for developtheroperties held for sale was estimated ta
into account estimated selling prices and estimabdéal construction costs. Thetiesated selling
prices are based on expected selling prices fodévelopment project after taking into considera
of prevailing market conditions. The estimated ltatanstruction costs include contracted amo
plus estimated costs to complete tthevelopment project. The allowance will be progresdg
reversed for those residential units sold above taerying amounts.

During the year, an allowance for diminution in ualfor development properties of $3,649,000
(2015: $8,935,000) is recognised as “other opegaipenses” in profit or loss [Note 25].

Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2016, development properties atimguto $126,615,000 (2015: $312,625,000
included in the above balances were mortgaged m&sbto secure credit ¢dities for the Group
Information relating to the Group’s loans and buwiirgys is disclosed in dte 13 to the financi
statements.

Land in Fuzhou Jin’an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Pioge, China

Included in the development properties was a aagramount of $7,378,000 (2015: $7,679,)000
relating to a land parcel acquired in 2009 in FughGhina with an expired certificate for 1
construction site planning. The Group has appi@dhe relevant authorities for its renewal si
2013. An allowance of $7,378,000 (2015: $7,679)08@s made based on management’s
estimate on net realisable value of the developsiéant

Termination of main contractor

In 2014, the Group terminated the services of tkeipus main contractor for Seletar Park Residence
on grounds of unsatisfactory performance. As db8&ember 2016, the ensuing legal and arbitration
proceedings were still on-going.
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List of development properties
As at 31 December 2016, the development propdréksby the Group are as follows:

Estimated  Year Group's

Name of Land gross completed/  effective
property/ Description/ area floor area estimated equity
location planned use Held by Tenure (sq. m) (sm) completion interest
Properties in the course of development
Kandis Condominium Dillenia 99 years 7,046 ,850 2019 100%
Residence, of 130 units Land from 2016
Jalan Kandis, Pte Ltd
Singapore
Land held for future development
Land in Jin-an Residential Fujian Ji'Xing 70 year 163,740 * * 100%
District, Fuzhou Real Estate from 1994
Fujian Province, Development
China Co., Ltd
Land adjacent to Mainly Qingdao 70 years 118,24 ** * 100%
Huangjiahe Residential Shenyang (residential)
Reservoir, Property 40 years
Shandong Co., Ltd. (commercial)
Province, China from

2011/2013
Completed properties held for sale
Lakeside Ville 172 units of Habitat 70 years 635 41,584 2010 100%
Phase I, apartments, Properties From
Qingpu district townhouses, (Shanghai) 1997
Shanghai and 8 units of Ltd
China commercial units

(168 units sold)
Seletar Park Condominium Asplenium 99 years 57,4 26,862 2015 100%
Residence, of 276 units Land from 2011
Seletar Road (273 units Pte Ltd
Singapore booked/sold)
Sennett Condominium Clerodendrum 99 years 8,664 33,328 2016 100%
Residence, townhouses of Land from 2011
Pheng Geck 332 units and Pte Ltd
Avenue three shop units
Singapore (320 units
booked/sold)

Cluny Park Condominium Shelford Freehold 4,544 6,997 2016 100%
Residence, of 52 units Properties
Cluny Park Road (32 units Pte Ltd
Singapore booked/sold)

* Pending renewal of expired certificate for consttion site planning
** Master plans are in progress
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9  Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold
Building land, buildings Plant
and and and Motor
Note freehold land improvements equipment vehicles Total
$'00C $'00C $'00C $'00C $'00C

Group
Cost or valuation:
At 1 Januan201¢ 367,20t 4,83 31,28¢ 1,37¢ 404,70¢
Exchange differences on

consolidation 10,336 (148) 1,291 5) 11,474
Additions 4C 2 4,05¢ - 4,09¢
Disposal - - (109 - (109
Write-offs - - (2,448 - (2,448
Reclassificatior 31¢ - (319 - -
Revaluatiol 14,08¢ - - - 14,08¢
At 31 December 20: 391,99 4,6¢1 33,76( 1,371 431,82
At 1 January 201 366,17C 4,953 35,658 1,276 408,057
Exchange differences on

consolidation (18,966) (120) (3,273) (22) (22,381)
Additions - 4 3,03t 280 3,319
Disposal: - - (568’ (158 (726
Write-offs - - (3,349 - (3,349
Reclassificatior 214 - (214) - -
Revaluatiol 19,78¢ - - - 19,788
At 31 December 20: 367,20t 4,83 31,28¢ 1,37¢ 404,70t
Comprising
At 31 December 201
At cos 49¢ 4,6¢1 33,760 1,371 40,320
At valuatior 391,49: - - - 391,49:

391,99 4,6¢1 33,760 1371 431,82
At 31 December 201
At cos 498 4,83 31,28¢ 1,376 38,00(
At valuatior 366,70€ - - - 366, 70¢
367,20t 4,83 31,28¢ 1,37¢ 404,70t
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Leasehold
land,
Building buildings Plant
and and and Motor
Note freehold land improvements equipment vehicles Total

Group $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2016 - 916 4,627 858 6,401
Exchange differences on

consolidation 55 (25) 672 ?3) 699
Depreciation 25 2,836 69 4,752 115 7,772
Disposals - - (40) - (40)
Write-offs - - (2,448) - (2,448)
Revaluation (2,891) - - - (2,891)
At 31 December 2016 - 960 7,563 970 9,493
At 1 January 2015 298 906 4,976 893 7,073
Exchange differences on

consolidation (44) (64) (1,687) (23) (1,818)
Depreciation 25 2,405 74 5,085 137 7,701
Disposals - - (398) (149) (547)
Write-offs - - (3,349) - (3,349)
Revaluation (2,659) - - - (2,659)
At 31 December 2015 - 916 4,627 858 6,401
Accumulated impairment:
At 1 January 2016 - 3,158 - - 3,158
Exchange differences on

consolidation - (117) - - (117)
At 31 December 2016 - 3,041 - - 3,041
At 1 January 2015 - 3,098 - - 3,098
Exchange differences on

consolidation - 60 - - 60
At 31 December 2015 - 3,158 - - 3,158
Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2016 391,990 690 26,197 401 419,278
At 31 December 2015 367,20€ 763 26,662 518 395,149
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Included in building and freehold land is freehdéhd with a carrying amount of $211,406,000
(2015: $198,022,000) which is not subject to deptmn.

As at 31 December 2016, a leasehold land and building with a carrying amount of $539,000
(MYR1,667,000) was stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. For information only, its fair
value was $3,881,000 (MYR12,000,000) as at the same date and as determined by an independent
valuer who have appropriate qualification and recent experience in the fair value measurement of the
properties in the relevant location.

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its prigpeplant and equipment at the end of €
reporting year to determine whether thés any indication that those assets have sufiienpdirmen
loss. No impairment loss was made in 2016 and 281%result of such assessment.

Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2016, property, plant and egefmamounting to $416,706,000
(2015: $391,970,0Q00included in the above balances were mortgagedbaioks as security fi
borrowings. Information relating to the Group’ats and borrowings is disclosed it 13 to th
financial statements.

Fair value measurement of hotel properties

The Group’s hotel properties (including freeholddand buildings) held under GHG are stated at
revalued amounts, being the fair value at the dateevaluation, less any subsequent accumul
depreciation and subsequent accumulative impairfosat The fair value measurement is based on an
valuation carried out by independent valuers, wéeehappropriate qualification and recent experi

in the fair value measurement of the propertighé@nrelevant locations.

The Group classiéd fair value measurement using a fair value hodnathat reflects the nature &
complexity of the significant inputs used in makitng measurement. As at 31 December 2816
fair value measurement of the Group’s hotel properis classified witim Level 3 of the fair valu
hierarchy. There is no change in the fair valuednzhy as compared to prior year.

Based on the valuation, revaluation gain amounting$16,980,000 (2015: $22,447,00@as
recognised in other comprehensive income [Note 28].

As at 31 December 2016, had freehold land and ingilseen carried at historical cost, their aggre
carrying amount would have been approximately $3B0000 (2015 : $343,460,000) for the Group.
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There were no transfers between different leve0il6 and 2018uring the year. Details of valuati
techniques and significant unobservable inputs irse¢ke fair value measurement as at 31 Dece
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Significant
unobservable
Name of property Valuation methodology inputs (Leel 3) Range
2016
Grand
Hyatt Melbourne Stabilised Earnings Capitalisation raté) 6.25%

121-131 Collins Street
Melbourne, Victorid®

Hyatt

Regency Perth
87-123 Adelaide Terrace
East Perth

Western Australi&®

Method
Discounted Cash Flow
Method

Stabilised Earnings
Method
Discounted Cash Flow

Method

Discount &te
Terminal yield rafé

Capitalisation raté)

Discount¥ate
Terminal yield rat&

7.50% - 9.00%
6.00% - 6.50%

6.50%

7.75% - 9.25%
6.25% - 6.75%

Significant
unobservable

Name of property Valuation methodology inputs (Leel 3) Range
2015

Grand

Hyatt Melbourne Capitalisation Approach Cayjistation rate? 6.75%

121-131 Collins Street
Melbourne, Victorid?

Hyatt

Regency Perth

87-123 Adelaide Terrace
East Perth

Western Australi&

@ Any significant isolated increase (decrease) iséhiaputs would result in a significantly lowerdher) fair value measurement.

Discounted Cash Flow

Approach

Capitalisation Approach
Discounted Cash Flow

Approach

chist raté
Terminal yield rdte

Capitatigarate®
cdist raté

Terminal yield réte

9.25% - 10.25%
6.25% - 7.25%

7.25%
9.50% - 10.50%

7.00% - 8.00%

@ The property valuation was performed by Knight kr&faluations on 30 November 2016, an independdneva
® The property valuation was performed by JLL Ho&Mospitality Group on 30 November 2015, an indejest valuer
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List of hotel properties

The carrying amount of the Group’s hotel properissat 31 December 2016 included in property, @adt
equipment are set out below. The non-hotel pregsenvithin the complexes are accounted for under
investment properties [Note 10].

Group's

Land effective
Name of area equity 2016 2015 2016 2015
property Description Tenure  (sq. m) interest A$'000 A$000 S$'000 S$'000

Australia

Grand Hyatt Located at the “Paris end” of Freehold 5,776 100% 334,871 300,405 350,576 305,872

Melbourne Collins Street and its

Australia intersection with Russell Street.
The Property is of 34 levels
featuring one of Melbourne’s
largest 5-star hotels, complete
with retail/commercial space.
The carrying value of the
retail/commercial space
has been disclosed as
investment property [Note 10].

Hyatt By Swan River and within Freehold 25,826 100% 61,090 82,430 63,955 83,930
Regency walking distance from the
Perth central business district. The

Australia Property is an integrated 5-star
hotel, office, retail and parking
complex. The hotel is built
over 9 levels. The carrying
value of the office, retail and
parking complex has been
disclosed as investment
property [Note 10].

395,961 382,835 414,531 389,802

! Figures in A$ are for information.
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Fair value adjustments

10 Investment properties
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
Note properties redevelopment Total
$'00C $'00C $'00C
Group
At 1 January 2016 705,244 371,665 1,076,909
Exchange differences on consolidation 5,952 - 5,952
Development costs 633 22,960 23,593
Net (loss) / gain from fair value 24 (131) 2,329 2,198
At 31 Decembe201¢ 711,69! 396,95¢ 1,10¢,652
At 1 January 2015 725,92C 357,01z 1,082,93:
Exchange differences on consolidation (12,246) - (12,246)
Development costs 218 13,934 14,152
Net (loss) / gain from fair value 24 (8,648) 719 (7,929)
At 31 December 20: 705,24 371,66! 1,076,90!
Company
At 31 December 2016 498 - 498
At 31 December 2015 498 - 498
Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Represented by:
Completed investment properties in Singapore 478,030 478,450
Completed investment properties in Australia 227,309 220,176
Completed investment properties in China 6,359 6,618
Investment property under development in Singapore 396,954 371,665
1,108,65. 1,076,90!

The Group’s investment properties are stated awvédue as at 31 December 20based on valuatic
carried out by independent professional valuers) idve the appropriate qualification and experie
in the location and category of the properties peimlued. Based on these valuations, daietalue
gain amounting to $2,198,000 (2015: net fair vdhss amounting to $7,929,00@&as recognised |

profit or loss [Note 24].
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The Group classified fair value measurement usifgjravalue hierarchy that reflects the nature

complexity of the significant inputs used in makithg measurement. As at 31 December 2€&
fair value measurement ofahGroup’s investment properties is classified withevel 3 of the fai
value hierarchy. There were no transfers betwetfereint levels in 2016 and 2015.

Details of valuation technigues and significanthservable inputs used in the fair value swamen

as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 foboass:

Valuation Significant unobservable
Name of property methodology inputs (Level 3) Range
2016
Singapore

Robinson Poin®
39 Robinson Road

Comparison Method

Price per square metre of $19,400 - $38,000
lettable are&

Singapore
Income Method Net income margir®) 75% - 85%
Capitalisation rat@ 2.8% to 4.0%
The Oxley® Comparison Method  Price per square metre of $18,300 - $30,800
9 Oxley Rise strata floor are&

#01-00, #02-00, #03-00
Singapore

Income Method

Net income margir®) 80% - 90%
Capitalisation rat& 2.0 % to 3.75%

Century Warehous®
31 strata units (out of a
total of 35 units) of the
building 100E Pasir
Panjang Road
Singapore

Direct Comparison
Method

Price per square metre of $7,300 - $12,800
strata floor aré&

L&Y Building ®
#01-03, #01-04, #05-01
59 Jalan Pemimpin
Singapore

Direct Comparison
Method

Price per square metre of $5,900 - $6,700
strata floor are& $5,900 - $8,300
(ground floor)

Far East Finance Buildir§

#11-01/02
14 Robinson Road
Singapore

Direct Comparison
Method

73

Price per square metre of $23,400 - $32,300
strata floor are&



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

Valuation Significant unobservable
Name of property methodology inputs (Level 3) Range
Singapore(cont’d)
Robinson Tower Residual Land Gross development value Office: $29,300 - $38,000
redevelopment sit@ Value Method per square metfe Retail: $51,700-$52,800

Developer’s profi® 10%
Direct Comparison Land sale per square $9,700 - $12,000
Method metre per plot rat(®

Construction cost per $7,200
square metre of
gross floor ar€d

Total development cost  $9,700
(exclude land cost) per
square metre of gross

floor are&*
Remaining construction 2 years

period?
Australia
Fortescue Centre & Capitalisation Method Capitalisation raté 9.25% - 9.75%
Carpark (being part of the  Discounted Cash Flow Discount raté&) 8.50% - 9.50%
Hyatt Regency comple) Method Terminal yield raté& 9.25% - 9.75%
Commercial Centre & Capitalisation Capitalisation raté Retail: 5.80%
Carpark within the Method
Melbourne Grand
Hyatt complex® Discounted Cash Flow Discount rat&) 7.25% - 7.75%

Method Terminal yield raté&) 6.00% - 6.50%

China
No. 2950 ChunShen Road Direct Comparison Price per square metre of $4,000 - $5,500
Shanghai, China Method gross floor ar€d
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Valuation Significant unobservable
Name of property methodology inputs (Level 3) Range
2015
Singapore

Robinson Poin®
39 Robinson Road

Comparison Method

Price per square metre of $22,600 - $37,700
lettable are&

Singapore Income Method Net income margirf® 75% - 85%
Capitalisation rat@ 2.0% - 3.75%

The Oxley® Comparison Method  Price per square metre of $26,500 - $29,100

9 Oxley Rise strata floor are&

#01-00, #02-00, #03-00

Singapore

Century Warehous® Direct Comparison Price per square metre of $7,000 - $12,700

31 strata units (out of a
total of 35 units) of the
building 100E Pasir
Panjang Road
Singapore

Method

strata floor aré&

L&Y Building ®
#01-03, #01-04, #05-01
59 Jalan Pemimpin
Singapore

Direct Comparison
Method

Price per square metre of $5,800 - $7,900
strata floor are& $6,000 - $8,700
(ground floor)

Far East Finance Buildirg
#11-01/02

14 Robinson Road
Singapore

Direct Comparison
Method

Price per square metre of $26,300 - $35,000
strata floor aré&

Robinson Tower
redevelopment sit@

Residual Land
Value Method

Direct Comparison
Method

75

Gross development value Office: $25,300 - $39,000
Retail: $64,700-$75,500

per square metfe

Developer’s profi® 10%

Land sale per square $9,800 - $12,000
metre per plot rat(®

Construction cost per
square metre of gross
floor are&

Total development cost
(exclude land cost) per
square metre of gross
floor ared *

Remaining construction

period?

$7,200

$10,000

2.5 years
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Valuation Significant unobservable
Name of property methodology inputs (Level 3) Range
Australia
Fortescue Centre & Capitalisation Method Capitalisation raté 8.25%
Carpark (being part of the  Discounted Cash Flow Discount rat& 8.75% - 9.25%
Hyatt Regency compleXy Method Terminal yield rat@ 8.25% - 8.75%
Commercial Centre & Capitalisation Capitalisation rat& Retail: 5.50%
Carpark within the Method
Melbourne Grand
Hyatt complex® Discounted Cash Flow Discount rat€&) Retail: 7.25% - 7.75%
Method Carpark: 8.00% - 8.50%
Terminal yield raté& Retail: 5.50% - 6.00%
Carpark: 6.50% - 7.00%
China
No. 2950 ChunShen Road Direct Comparison Price per square metre of $3,700 - $5,000
Shanghai, China Method gross floor areéd
Notes:

* Net income margin - net property incomefaal gross rental income

# Total development cost includes constamctiost, professional fees, interest cost, landihglcost and other development related cost
@ Any significant isolated increase (decreasghese inputs would result in a significantly hég (lower) fair value measurement

@ Any significant isolated increase (decreasghese inputs would result in a significantly lewhigher) fair value measurement

@ The property valuation was performed by @afliinternational Consultancy & Valuation (Singa)d?te Ltd, an independent

valuel, for both year
®  The property valuation was performed by Jdreesy LaSalle Property Consultants Pte Ltd, anpeddent valuer, for both years

©  The property valuation was performed by CBRE Ltd, an independent valuer, for both years
@ The property valuation was performed by Knigtank Valuations on 30 November 2016, an indepensuer
®  The property valuation was performed by JLLté#0& Hospitality Group on 30 November 2015, atieipendent valuer

Operating lease disclosure

Rental income from the Group's investment propertidich were all leased under operating le
amounted to $34,844,000 (2015: $33,916,000) [Ndfe Direct operating expenses (including ref
and maintenance) related to these investment pgrepeamounted to $7,052,000 (2015: $7,003,000
Information on operating lease commitments is disetl in Note 30 to the financial statements.

Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2016, investment properties atmguno $1,102,293,000 (2015: $1,070,291)000
included in the above balances were mortgagedn&sbhas security for borrowings. Information reig

to the Group’s loans and borrowings is discloselate 13 to the financial statements.
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List of completed investment properties

The carrying amounts of completed investment pt@xeheld by the Group as at 31 December 206
as follows:

Strata Group's
floor effective

Name of area equity 2016 2015
property Description Tenure (sq. m) interest $'000 $'000
Singapore
Robinson Point A 21-storey Freehold 15,724 © 100% 352,000 352,000
39 Robinson Road commercial building
Singapore with 3-levels of carpark
The Oxley 3 floors of commercial Freehold 2,770 100% 63,300 63,300
9 Oxley Rise space within a 10-
#01-00, #02-00, storey building
#03-00 Singapore including residential

units
Century Warehouse31 out of a total of 35 Freehold 4,690 100% 40,400 40,400
100E Pasir Panjangstrata units of a 8-
Road Singapore  storey industrial

building
L&Y Building 3 out of a total of 24 999 years 2,285 100% 13,030 13,450
#01-03, #01-04, strata units of a From 1885
#05-01 5-storey industrial
59 Jalan Pemimpin  building
Singapore
Far East Finance 1 strata unit (floor) 999 years 402 100% 9,300 9,300
Building within a 13- storey from 1884
#11-01/02 commercial
14 Robinson Road building and a
Singapore basement

478,03( 478,45l
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Strata Group’s
floor effective

Name of area  equity 2016 2015 2016 2015
property Description Tenure (sg. m) interest A$'000'  A$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Australia

Commercial 4 Collins St. retail Freehold 3,024 100% 130,000 118,000 136,097 120,148
Centre& Carpark shops consisting

within the of 2 floors each,

Melbourne Granda bar & function
Hyatt complex room. A further
7 retail areas in
and around
Russell St. with
4-levels of
basement car park

Fortescue Centre A 3-level Freehol@3,415 100% 87,125 98,240 91,212 100,028
& Carpark commercial
(being part of building and
the Perth Hyatt plaza level shops
Regency and suites with
complex) 2-levels of
basement car park

217,125 216,24C 227,309 220,17¢€

China 2016 2015 2016 2015
RMB’000! RMB’000? S$'000  S$'000

No. 2950 A 3-storey 58 years 2,170 100% 30,500 30,500 6,359 6,618
ChunShen commercial from

Road Shanghai, building 2008

China

A Gross floor area
1 Figures in A$ and RMB are for information only.
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List of investment property under redevelopment

The carrying amount of investment property undmtervelopment as at 31 December 2@H@&s

follows:
Planned
Gross Group's
Floor effective
Name of Area equity 2016 2015
property Description Tenure (sg. m) interest $'000 $'000
Singapore
Robinson Tower Proposed 28 999-years 24,086 100% 396,954 371,665
redevelopment si storey commercii from 188¢
building & 1885
comprising (Lots 167X,
office tower, 616W,
retail podium, 691X,
sky terrace and an  99280A,
underground 99287W
mechanised and
carpark 99289P)
99-years
from 2013
(Lots
485M,
488P)

The Group is in the course of redeveloping the witere the previous Robinson Towers, its ar
and the immediately adjacent International FadBariéding were as a single commercial developn

as indicated above.

Interest costs capitalised during the year wag2000 (2015: $3,811,0p@at effective interest ra
of 2.4% per annum (2015: 2.5% per annum) [Note 23].
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11  Investments in subsidiaries

Company
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Quoted shares, at cost 115,976 115,976
Unquoted shares, at cost 548,418 557,540
Loan to a subsidiary 79,562 79,404
Deemed investment arising from financial guarastee 63,809 46,925
807,765 799,845
Less: Allowance for impairment (123,010) (137,945)
684,755 661,900
Fair value of investment in a subsidiary
for which there are published price quotations 13,792 30,961

Details of the Company'’s significant subsidiaiaes disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statement

Financial guarantees

The Company provided guarantees to banks for cfadiiities obtained by certain of its subsidial
and recorded a deemed financial guarantee fee mcmmaccordance with FRS 3Binancial
Instruments: Recognition and Measuremehhe deemed income is amortised over the peffidle
guarantees. The unamortised financial guaraneeff&16,236,000 (2015: $6,722,008 discloset
under the Company’s non-trade payables in Noteolthd financial statements. The guarantee
was not charged by the Company to the subsidiafiém® full amount of the guarantee fee is dee
to be additional investment in subsidiaries.

Movements in allowance for impairment

Company

201¢ 201t

$'000 $'000
Allowance for impairment
At 1 January (137,945 (136,767
Allowance for impairment (6,404 (1,178
Reversal of impairment 7,609 -

1,205 (1,178)

Reversal upon liquidation of subsidiaries 13,730 -
At 31 December (123,010) (137,945)
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During the year, impairment loss amounting to $6,800 (2015: $1,178,00@vas made in respect
the Company’s investment in certain subsidiariesettuce thecarrying value of investment to t
recoverable amounts after taking into account timeeat financial position of the subsidiaries.
addition, there was a reversal of impairment amagnto $7,609,000 (2015: $Nilin relation tc
certain subsidiaries due to increase in their recisle amounts.

Loan to a subsidiary

Loan to a subsidiary refers to unsecured advanbe&hvinave no fixed terms of repayment and are
expected to be repaid in the next 12 months. Thdsances bear interest rate at 6.5% per annum
(2015: rates ranging from 4.5% to 6.5% per annum).

Wholly-owned subsidiaries

Information about the composition of wholbywned subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 Dece
2016 is as follows:

Country of incorporation  Number of wholly-owned

Principal activity and operation Subsidiaries
2016 2015
Development of properties for sale, Singapore, China 27 26

property investment and provision and Australia
of property management services.

Investment in hotels in Australia Australia 4 4

Investments in GulTech, a printed Singapore, China

circuit boards manufacturer with  and Malaysia 3 5
operations in Singapore and

China, and Pan-West, a retailer of

golf-related products.

34 35

81



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

Non-wholly owned subsidiaries

Information about the composition of narolly owned subsidiaries of the Group as at 31dbswel
2016 is as follows:

Country of incorporation  Number of non-wholly owned

Principal activity and operation subsidiaries
2016 2015
Trading and marketing of selected Singapore and Malaysia 9 9

industrial commodities,
distribution of tyres and re-
treading of tyres

Property development Singapore 1 1

Manufacture and sale of Malaysia 1 1
polypropylene woven bags

11 11

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that havaterial non-controlling interests to the Group is
disclosed below:

Effective equity

Country of interest
incorporation & voting power Net profit
and principal held by allocated Accumulated non-
place of non-controlling to non-controlling controlling
Name of subsidiary business interests interests interests
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SP Corporation Various 19.8%  19.8% 337 290 10,476 9,977
Limited and its
subsidiaries
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The summarised financial information of SP Corporatimited and itssubsidiaries on a 100% ba
is set out below:

2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Current assets 77,596 76,193
Non-current assets 375 530
Current liabilities (24,933) (26,335)
Non-current liabilities (54) (24)
Equity attributable to owners 52,984 50,364
Revenue for the year 125,640 119,675
Net profit for the year 1,802 1,466
Investments in equity accounted investees
Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Unquoted equity shares, at cost 72,240 72,240
Exchange differences on consolidation 8,040 5,212
Share of post-acquisition results and reserves,
net of dividends and distributions received 3,299 (5,941)
83,57¢ 71,51:

Equity accounted investees

The Group equity accounted for Gul Technologiesg&pore Pte Ltd (“GulTech”) and Pakest
(Private) Limited (“Pan-West”). In February 201BulTech increased its equity stake Gultech
(Suzhou) Electronics Co., Ltd from 61.4% to 100R¢etails of the Group’s significant associates ¢
31 December 2016 are disclosed in Note 34 to theantial statementsThe Group has ceased
recognising Pan-West’s losses after the Group’s share of Pan-West’s accumulated losses exceeded
the Group’s cost of investment. Included in the share of post-acquisition results and reserves
comprise $4,365,000 relating to the goodwill paid over acquiring additional shares in a member of
associate.
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The Group’s share of net assets and total compsareeincome of GulTech is set out below:

Group
Note 201¢ 201¢
$'000 $'000

Share of net assets
At 1 January 71,511 62,981
Exchange differences on consolidation 2,829 4,557
Goodwill paid over acquiring additional shares (4,365) -
Share of total comprehensive income

(refer to below) 13,604 6,683
Reclassification - 5,853
Distributions - (8,563)
At 31 December 83,579 71,511
Share of total comprehensive income
Share of results before fair value adjustments 13,466 6,803
Share of fair value gain/ (loss) on financial

instruments 24 138 (120)
Share of total comprehensive income

for the year 13,604 6,683

Details of asset revaluation reserve and cash fledging account are disclosed in Ndi@ to

the financial statements. Share of capital commnitts of GulTech, an equity accounted investee is
disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.

GulTech

The summarised financial information of GulTechaof©00% basis is set out below:

2016 2015 2016 2015

uss$ooc uss$'ooc S$'00( S$'00(
Current assets 154,955 171,874 224,405 241,620
Non-current assets 149,887 164,957 217,066 231,897
Current liabilities (93,769) (101,792) (135,796) (143,101)
Non-current liabilities (37,421) (59,380) (54,194) (83,477)
Non-controlling interests (43,902) (61,295) (63,579) (86,169)
Equity attributable to owners 129,750 114,364 187,902 160,770
Revenue for the year 244,340 242,94¢€ 337,214 334,294
Net profit for the year 22,162 10,918 30,586 15,023

1 Figures in US$ are for information.
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Pan-West

In the prior year, the Group had recognised itgesitd losses of $5,853,00fking the corporai
guarantees given to certain banks in exchange &k facilities granted to Paiest and it
subsidiary. Out of which amount, $445,000 had besersed in the current year as amountds
longer required resulting in the remaining recogdishare of losses being $5,408,000 [Noteas4d
31 December 2016. Other than the afmentioned corporate guarantees, the Group had hey
commitments in relation to Pan-West. The Groupdesed recognising Paviest's losses after ti
Group’s share of Pawest's accumulated losses exceeded the Group’s cbsinvestment
Accordingly, the Group’s nominal additional shafeaocumulated losses of P¥yiest amounting t
$5,939,000 (2015: $4,078,000) as at the end ofe¢he was not recognised.

Loans and borrowings

Short-term borrowings
Bank loans

Long-term borrowings

Bank loans

Notes issued under
MTN Programme

Total borrowings

Represented by:
Interest-bearing liabilities

Capitalised interest costs

Group Company
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

3,406 428,924 - -

937,825 598,00¢ - -
79,562 79,404 79,562 79,404
1,017,387 677,41C 79,562 79,404
1,020,793 1,106,33¢ 79,562 79,404
1,024,085 1,108,37( 80,000 80,000
(3,292) (2,036) (438) (596)

1,02079:3 1,106,33 79,56 79,40
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Security profile

Group Company

201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Secured borrowings
Current 3,406 428,924 - -
Non-current 937,825 598,006 - -

941,231 1,026,930 - -

Unsecured borrowings
Non-current 79,562 79,404 79,562 79,404

1,020,793 1,106,334 79,562 79,404

Multicurrency Medium Term Note Programme

The Company has in place a S$900 million Multicaeye Medium Term NotdProgramme (“MTN
Programme”) under which it can issue notes inesepr tranches and may be denominate
Singapore dollars or other currency deemed ap@tapat the time.

Notes issued under the MTN Programme comprise x&dfirate notes (the “Ndjeamounting tc
S$80,000,000 which will mature on 14 October 200¥e Notes are unsecured, bear a fixed inte
rate of 4.50% per annum payable semitually in arrear. At the end of the reportingiqerthe fair
value of the Note approximates its carrying amount.

Details of collateral

Loans and borrowings from banks were secured theeiGroup’s cash and bank balances [Ngjte
trade and other receivables [Note 6], inventoriést¢ 7], development properties [N@g property
plant and equipment [Note 9], investment propetiidate 10] and covered by corbe guarantee
[Note 31].

Interest rate profile

Group Company
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Loans and borrowings

Fixed rate 79,562 79,404 79,562 79,404

Variable rate 941,231 1,026,930 - -
1,020,793 1,106,334 79,562 79,404

The Group’s exposure to fair value interest rask is disclosed in Note 88) to the financis
statements as at 31 December 2016.
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Fair value

The fair value of the current portion of the Grsulpars and borrowings approximate their carry
amounts at the end of the reporting period bectheseare short term in nature. The fair value el
non-<current portion of the Group’s loans and borrowiaggproximate their carrying amounts at
end of thereporting period as their interest rates approx@éntairrent market interest rates on or 1
the end of the reporting period. Further detagtgarding foreign currency denomination and mat
dates, contractual and effective interest rateslimaosed in Note 32(a) and (82 respectively to th
financial statements.

Loan maturity profile

The non-current borrowings are generally repaydilien 2 January 2018 to 11 September 2026
(2015: 30 November 2018 to 11 September 2026)rrimdton relatingd the maturity profile of th
Group’s loans and borrowings is disclosed in N&@&@ Bto the financial statements.

14 Trade and other payables

Group Company
Note 201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade
Trade payables 46,846 46,75C 95 88
Amounts due to related parties 16 4,143 4,113 - -
50,989 50,863 95 88
Non-trade
Other creditors 19,315 16,74¢ 212 139
Other provisions 5,156 4,990 - -
Advanced billings 6,692 11,673 - -
Accrued operating expenses 28,185 29,427 2,774 2,921
Accrued interest expenses 2,028 3,312 779 779
Financial guarantees to subsidiarieg1 - - 16,236 6,722
Amounts due to related parties 16 430 562 - 12
112,795 117,576 20,096 10,661
Less: non-current portion (462) (362) - -
Current portion 112,333 117,214 20,096 10,661

87



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

15

The Group is granted various credit terms onutslpasesrbm its large number of suppliers who
geographically dispersed. Trade payables are giynen 7 to 120 days (2015 to 120 days) crec
term. The Group manages liquidity risk of tradggides primarily by maintaining sufficient cash i
credit facilities [Note 32(d)].

Included in other creditors is a financial guaranté $5,408,000 (2015: $5,853,000) granted t
associate, Pawest, equivalent to the Group’s share of corpogai@antees given to certain bank
secure credit facilities of Pan-West and its stibsjd

The carrying amount of trade and other payablesoappate their fair values at the end of

reporting periods. Further details regarding tbetactual and effective interest rates, maturétee
and foreign currency denomination are discloseddte 32 to the financial statements.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

Company
201¢€ 201¢
$'000 $'000
Amounts due from subsidiaries - non-trade 279,146 307,918
Less: Allowance for impairment (23,679) (22,170)
255,467 285,748
Amounts due to subsidiaries - non-trade (265,956) (292,716)
Movements in allowance for impairment
Company
201¢€ 201¢
$'000 $'000
Movements in allowance for impairment
At 1 January (22,170) (20,650)
Allowance made (1,509) (1,520)
At 31 December (23,679) (22,170)

Advances from and to subsidiaries are unsecuregantepayable on dend. Interest is charged
2.4% (2015: rate ranging from 1.08% to 3.0%) petam on interest-bearing advances.

During the year, allowance for impairment of $1,80® (2015: $1,520,00@vas made for amour
due from subsidiaries. The above assessimaifter taking into account the current finangasition
of the subsidiaries. The allowance for impairmein$1,509,000 (2015: $1,520,00@as made for
subsidiary due to decrease in net asset valuedwtriying interest at the reporting date.
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16

Amounts due from/(to) related parties

Group
Note  201¢€ 201t 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts due from:
Other related parties
Other related parties, trade 12,209 7,768 -
Other related parties, non-trade 3,723 5,178 -
Refundable deposits with other related
parties 8,689 8,435 -
24,62: 21,38: -
Total 24,621 21,381 -
Presented as:
Amounts due from related parties, trade 6 12,209 7,768 -
Amounts due from related parties,
non-trade 6 12,412 13,613 -
24,62: 21,38: -
Amounts due to:
Associates
Associates, trade - 3) -
Associates, non-trade - (10) (10)
- (13) (10)
Other related parties
Other related parties, trade (4,143) (4,110) -
Other related parties, non-trade (430) (552) (2)
(4,573 (4,662 (2)
Total (4,573) (4,675) (12)
Presented as:
Amounts due to related parties, trade 14 (4,143) (4,113) -
Amounts due to related parties, non-trads4 (430) (562) (12)
(4,573 (4,675 (12)
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The Company’s major shareholder is Nuri Holdings P& Ltd (“Nuri”), incorporated in Singapoil
Related companies are the companies in which theekblders of Nuri and their family memb
have a controlling interest in. Related partiedude subsidiaries, associates, joint ventureaied
companies, Nuri and Directors of the Company aed tissociates.

Included in amounts due to other related partresletand non-trade, are migibalances with relate
companies. Further details regarding transactidtis iglated parties are disclosed in Notet@3he
financial statements.

Amounts due from/(to) other related parties

Included in the non-trade amounts due from relptaties is a refundable deposit of US$6,000,0C
equivalent to $8,689,000 (2015: $8,435,000) pldne&P Corporation Limited (“SP Corp™a listec
subsidiary of the Group to secure coal supply alioo with a coal mine which is a related comp
as defined above.

The deposit is subject to yearly renewal by muaiggeement between the two parties. It is secuyt
a corporate guarantee issued by the holding compéttlye related company and bears an effe:
interest of 5.4% (2015: 4.8%) per annufthe deposit has been assessed as having been pittte
counterparty that is creditworthy and accordingty adlowance for potential narecovery of thic
deposit is required.

Included in the other related parties, non-trades wa amount of $3,476,000 (2015: $4,897)000
which is an advance to a related party for coakoplacement. The remaining trade and trade
amounts due from / (to) other related parties waneecured, intereftee, and repayable with
normal trade terms.

An amount of $1,963,000 in previoyear’s financial statements has been reclassifieoh f'Trade

receivables” to “Amounts due from related partiesrade” following a corporate transaction
December 2015 involving a director and his assediabmpanies [Note 6].
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17

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax at the end of the reporting perioasisis of the following:

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from
Accelerated tax depreciation compared to adoagidepreciation 254 278
Profit recognised on percentage of completiotevelopment
properties for sale - 13,542
Revaluation of properties 1,393 1,450
Foreign income not remitted and which will ldject to tax
if remitted in the future 33,475 23,838
Unutilised tax losses - 1,826
Others (1,678) (1,659)
33,444 39,27E
Represented by:
Deferred tax assets (2,286) (3,045)
Deferred tax liabilities 35,730 42,320
33,444 39,275

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are nettedabfén there is a legally enforceable right to dftsed

when the deferred income taxes relate to the sarmauthorities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised Hey Group and the movements thereon during
current and prior reporting periods are as follayvin

Foreign
Accelerated Deferred income  Unutilised
tax development Revaluation not tax
Note depreciation costs of properties remitted losses Others Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
At 1 January 2016 278 13,542 1,450 23,838 1,826 (1,659) 39,275
Exchange differences
on consolidation Q) - (57) 780 14 (59) 677
Transfer to income tax
payable upon
completion of
development properties - (12,602) - - - - (12,602)
Charged to profit or loss 26 (23) (940) - 3,790 (1,840) 40 1,027
Charged to other
comprehensive income 5g R R } 5.067 } R 5067
At 31 December 2016 254 - 1,393 33,475 - (1,678) 33,444
Foreign
Accelerated Deferred income  Unutilised
tax development Revaluation not tax
Note depreciation costs of properties remitted losses Others Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
At 1 January 2015 395 7,619 1,421 23,430 (348) (1,680) 30,837
Exchange differences
on consolidation (31) - 29 (1,267) (14) 113 (2,170)
Transfer to income tax
payable upon
completion of
development properties - (2,486) - - - - (2.486)
Charged to profit or loss 26 (86) 8,409 - (4,773) 2,188 (92) 5,646
Charged to other
comprehensive income ,g } R } 6.448 } R 6.448
At 31 December 2015 278 13,542 1,450 23,838 1,826 (1,659) 39,275

92



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

Deferred tax liabilities relating to equity intetda GHG

Deferred tax liabilities included an amount of 84,000 (2015: $27,969,00@n account of
provision made by the Group to recognise the taxghlns on the excess of the fair value of netts
of GHG over the tax cost base of the securitigSHG.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At the end of the reporting year, the aggregate usn@f temporary differences associated
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for whiclfieded tax liabilities have not been recognised
$263,000 (2015: $244,000). No liatyi has been recognised in respect of these éiffegs becau:
the Group is in a position to control the timing tbe reversal of temporary differences, and
probable that such differences will not reversthanforeseeable future.

Deferred tax benefits not recognised

At the end of the reporting year, the Group hadjestt to the agreement by the tax authori
unutilised tax losses of $29,692,000 (2015: $36@23 which were available for carry forward &
set-off against future taxable income. No defeteedasset (2015: $11,358,00@d been recognis
in respect of the tax losses of $29,640,000 (2(i%,568,00D due to the unpredictability of tl
relevant future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting year, the Group Fadject to the agreement by the tax authoritigsitad:
allowances of $2,263,000 (2015: $2,401,000) whigrewavailable for carry forward and sst-
against future taxable income. Future tax benafiing from these unutilised capital allowanced h
not been recognised in the financial statementeers was no reasonable certainty of their recoie
the future years.
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18  Share capital

Group and Company

201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
Number of ordinary
shares (‘000) $'000 $'000
Issued and paid up:
At 1 January 1,178,825 1,176,15¢ 170,230 169,26(
Issued under Scrip Dividend
Scheme 4,432 2,669 1,196 970
Shares bought back and cancelled (415) ) (120) )
At 31 Decembe 1,182,84. 1,178,82! 17130¢ 170,23C

The Company has a single class of ordinary sha#lsssued shares carry one vote per share and are
entitled to receive dividend as and when declasethe Company. The ordinary shares are fully paid
and have no par value.

Issue of shares

During the year, the Company allotted and issud814667 (2015: 2,669,072) ordinary shares at an
issue price of 27.0 cents (2015: 36.3 cents) paresto eligible shareholders who have validly edct
to participate in the Tuan Sing Scrip Dividend Subén respect of the first and final ordinary disdi

of 0.6 cent per share for the financial year ergte®ecember 2015.

Purchase and cancellation of shares

During the year, the Company acquired 415,000 ®foitdinary shares through purchase on the
Singapore Exchange under the Share Purchase Maapaieved by its shareholders. The shares were
purchased were cancelled subsequently.
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19

Reserves
Group Company
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Asset revaluation reserve 106,420 94,534 - -
Foreign currency translation account  (16,151) (23,722) - -
Other capital reserves:
- Non-distributable capital reser 12820C 117,694 101,26 101,264
- Cash flow hedging account (1,413 (1,350 - -
126,78 116,342 101,26 101,264
Revenue reserve 531,060 519,421 310,779 294,427
748,11¢€ 706,57! 412,04 395,691

Asset revaluation reserve

Asset revaluation reserve comprises net cumulativeluses arising from the revaluation of prope
plant and equipment which are held for the purpdg®oduction or supply or goods and services.

Foreign currency translation account

Foreign currency translation account comprises idareexchangedifferences arising from tf
translation of the financial statements of foretperations whose functional currencies are diffe
from the presentation currency of the Company,3@®D as well as from the translation of monet
items which form parof the Group’s net investment in foreign operatiahshe end of the reportii
period.

Other capital reserves

Non-distributable capital reserves comprise madgapital reduction reserve of the Compasiyare o
reserve of an associate, GulTech dmdribution reserve of GHG which is used to recibrel balanc
of amounts available for distribution as definedoy Trust Deed.

Cash flow hedging account represents the cumulagtehange in fair value of the effective pori
of the cash flow hedges.

Revenue reserve

Revenue reserve is used to record the balance ofirets available for distributions as defined
regulatory requirements. This is distributablehargholders as dividend.
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21

Dividend
Group and Company
201¢ 201E
$'000 $'000
Tax-exempt one-tier first and final dividend paid n
respect of the previous year
Cash 5,877 4911
Share 1,196 970
7,07 5,881

The Directors proposed a tax exempt one-tier firgt final dividend of 0.6 cent per share (2015: O.
cent per share) amounting to $7,097,000 (2015:787/000, subject to the shareholders’ approval a
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Compawoybe paid in respect of the financial year er
31 December 2016. €hTuan Sing Scrip Dividend Scheme will be applieat this propose
dividend.

Revenue

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Sale of products 132,003 125,749
Sale of development properties 110,066 384,658
Rental income of investment properties 34,844 33,916
Hotel operations and related income 121,748 126,788
Services rendered 4,816 5,547
Others 541 464
404,0:8 677,12.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goodssandces supplied. Includea ithe Group'
revenue from sale of development properties is megerecognisedased on the percentage

completion method amounting to $81,552,000 (208813$48,000).
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22 Interest income

Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income from debtors
Interest income from related parties

23  Finance costs

Interest expense on loans and borrowings
Amortisation of capitalised finance costs

Less: Amounts capitalised
- Development properties
- Investment properties

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
2,634 3,198
292 610
1,539 450
4,4¢€5 4,25¢
Group
Note 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
30,283 35,211
1,303 960
31,586 36,171
8 (1,641 (4,831
10 (4,229 (3,811
(5,870) (8,642)
25,716 27,52¢

Borrowing costs capitalised as cost of propertieden development relate to borrowings taken

finance each project.
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24

Fair value adjustments

Fair value gain / (loss) from:
Subsidiaries
Share of an equity accounted investee

Represented by:
Fair value gain / (loss) in respect of :

- investment properties
- financial instruments

The fair value adjustment is analysed as follows:

2016
Fair value gain

on investment properties
Subsidiaries

Fair value gain
on financial instruments
Share of an equity accounted investee

2015
Fair value loss

on investment properties
Subsidiaries

Fair value loss
on financial instruments
Share of an equity accounted investee

Note

10

12

10

12

98

Group
Note 201¢ 201F
$'000 $'000
2,198 (7,929)
12 138 (120)
2,33€ (8,049)
2,198 (7,929)
12 138 (120)
2,33€ (8,049
Group
Deferred
Gross tax Net
$'00C $'00C $'00C
2,198 (87) 2,111
138 - 138
2,33€ (87) 2,249
(7,929) 2,723 (5,206)
(120) - (120)
(8,049 2,72: (5,326
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Profit before tax

Other than disclosed elsewhere in these finantments, profit before tax for the year has |

arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

[included in cost of sales, distribution costhnanistrative expenses]

Net loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plamd aquipment
[included in other operating income / (expenses)]

Allowance for diminution in value for developmeroperties
[included in other operating expenses]

Allowance for doubtful receivables, net
[included in other operating income / (expenses)]

Allowance for inventory obsolescence, net
[included in other operating income / (expenses)]

Foreign exchange gain, net
[included in other operating income / (expenses)]

Write-back of recognised corporate guarantee ngdorequired
[included in other operating income]
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Group
201¢ 201¢
$'000 $'000
7,772 7,701
5 (62)
3,649 8,935
52 197
1 89
(352) (168)
(445) -
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Group
2016 2015
$'000 $'000
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 128,479 122,232
Net loss on liquidation of subsidiaries 1,794 -
[included in other operating expenses]
Auditors' remuneration
Audit fees
- Auditors of the Company 326 322
- Other auditors 173 185
Non-audit fees
- Auditors of the Company 52 67
- Other auditors 32 551
Directors' remuneration
Of the Company
- Salaries and wages 1,554 1,511
Of the subsidiaries
- Salaries and wages 1,951 1,946
- Defined contribution plans 56 52
3,561 3,509

Employees benefit expenses
(excluding Directors’ remuneration)
- Salaries and wages 12,274 12,652
- Defined contribution plans 1,007 940
- Others 86 28

13,367 13,620

The Audit and Risk Committee had reviewed the naditsservices provided by the auditors, Deloitte
& Touche LLP, Singapore and the overseas practit&eloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and was
of the opinion that these services would not affieetindependence of the auditors.
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Income tax expenses

Note

Current income tax
- Singapore
- Foreign
- Over provision in prior years

Withholding tax expense
Deferred tax 17

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
1,970 2,606
3,146 3,540
(10) (819)
5,10¢ 5,32i
139 562
1,027 5,646
6,27 11,53¢

Singapore income tax is calculated at 17% (2A18%) of the estimated assessable income fo
year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is calcuthtd the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdics.

The reconciliation between thax expense reported and the product of accouptioiit multiplied by

the applicable tax rate is as follows:

Profit before income tax

Income tax calculated at 17% (2015: 17%)

Adjustments:

Share of results of an equity-accounted investee

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax assets

Tax losses not available for set-off against feiimcome

Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating timeo jurisdictions

Income that is not subject to tax

Utilisation of tax losses and capital allowanceviously
unrecognised

Over provision in prior years

Withholding tax expense

Others
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Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
40,078 80,654
6,814 13,711
(2,313) (1,136)
3,231 2,282
178 602
7 4
1,872 341
(3,705) (2,143)
(102) (1,950)
(20) (819)
139 562
161 81
6,27 11,53t
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Earnings per share

Analysis of the Group’s profit from operations &ad value adjustments are as follows:

Group
Before Fair After
fair value value fair value
Note adjustments adjustments adjustments
$'000 $'000 $'000
2016
Profit before tax 37,742 2,336 40,078
Income tax expenses 26 (6,185) (87) (6,272)
Profit for the year 31,557 2,249 33,806
Less:
Non-controlling interests (221) - (221)
Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 31,33€ 2,248 33,58¢
2015
Profit before tax 88,703 (8,049) 80,654
Income tax expenses 26 (14,258) 2,723 (11,535)
Profit for the year 74,445 (5,326) 69,11¢
Less:
Non-controlling interests (286) - (286)
Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 74,158 (5,326) 68,833
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The calculation oftte basic and diluted earnings per share attribaitimbthe ordinary owners of t
Company is based on the following data:

Group
201¢ 201¢
$'00C $'00C
Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Before fair value adjustments 31,336 74,15¢
Fair value adjustments 2,249 (5,326)
After fair value adjustments 33,585 68,833
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)
Including fair value adjustments 2.8 5.8
Excluding fair value adjustments 2.7 6.3
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in '008hares
for the purpose of computation of basic and dilutedearnings
per share 1,181,005 1,177,54¢

There is no dilutive ordinary share in 2016 and3201
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28 Other comprehensive income
Group
Before Deferred After
Note tax tax tax
$'000 $'000 $'000
2016
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Revaluation of properties 9 16,980 (5,094) 11,886
Items that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations 4,903 - 4,903
Share of other comprehensive income of an
equity accounted investee 2,829 - 2,829
Cash flow hedges (90) 27 (63)
24,622 (5,067) 19,555
2015
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Revaluation of properties 9 22,447 (6,719) 15,728
Items that will be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations (9,450) - (9,450)
Share of other comprehensive income of an
equity accounted investee 4 557 - 4 557
Cash flow hedges (904) 271 (633)
16,650 (6,448) 10,202

The Group entered into certain interest rate se@practs to hedge its interest rate risk exposures
Derivatives that are designated and effective dgihg instruments are carried at fair value.
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Group
201¢ 201¢
$'00C $'00C
Derivativesthat are designated and effective as hec 1,01¢ 904

The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage pizsese to interest rate movements on its bank
borrowings by swapping a proportion of those boingw from floating rates to fixed rates. Contracts
with nominal values of A$177 million or equivaleiot $185 million have fixed interest payments at a
fixed rate of 2.254% per annum for periods up W18 and have a floating interest rate of 1 month
Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate.

All of the Group’s interest rate swaps are designiand effective as cash flow hedges and the fair
value of these interest rate swaps, amounting @099 (2015: $904,000) has been recognised in other
comprehensive income during the year.

The following tables detail the notional princigahounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap

contracts outstanding as at the end of the repytar:

Average contracted Notional principal amount Fair value
fixed interest rate

Group 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
per annum per annum $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
lto2years 2.254% 2.254% 185,301 180,221 1,019 904
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29  Significant related party transactions

In addition to the related party transactions|dsed elsewhere in the financightements, the Grot
has the following significant related party trartgats with the major shareholders, associates lae
Directors of the Company and their associates:

Group

201¢ 201t

$'000 $'000
Transactions with major shareholders
Sale of products and services rendered 14,336 4,763
Sale of a development property 645 952
Rental income 1,887 1,779
Interest income 827 450
Purchase of products (46,747) (37,285)
Transactions with associates
Management fee income 180 180
Rental income 173 344
Interest income 713 -
Transactions with Directors of the Company and thei

associates

Sale of development properties - 1,897

The Company’s njar shareholder is Nuri Holdings (S) Pte Ltd (“NYriincorporated in Singapor
Related party transactions with major sharehold&rrto transactions with the companies in wi
the shareholders of Nuri and their family membeaageha controlling interst in. The related par
transactions are entered into in the normal coofsbusiness based on terms agreed betwee
parties.
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At the end of the reporting year, the Group hadmoitments to lease certain commercial propertie
Nuri, and associates of the Group. These cancellable operating leases had remaining leases
of between 1 month and 14 months (2015: 1 ton®&ths). Future minimum lease receivables u
these leases not recognised as receivables atdhaf each reporting period were as follows:

Commitment with related parties

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Commitment with major shareholders
Sale of development properties - 645
Operating leases
- Within one year 2,385 2,758
- After one year but not more than five years 2,100 4,282
- After five years 2,299 2,822
6,784 9,862
Remuneration of Directors and key management paejon
Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Short-term benefits and fees 3,505 3,457
Post-employment benefits (defined contributiompla 56 52
3,561 3,50¢
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30

Commitments

Capital commitments

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Development and investment properties expenddongracted
for but not provided in the financial statements 143,287 183,671
Capital expenditure approved by Directors but mottiacted for
in the financial statements 5,143 1,375
Share of commitments of equity-accounted investees
- Capital expenditure contracted for but noivided
in the financial statements 1,703 2,074
- Acquisition of shares - 18,725

Share of commitment on acquisition of shares

On 31 December 2015, the Company'‘s 44.5%-ownedidsed company, Gul Technologies Singapore
Ltd (“GulTech”), has through its wholly-owned suthisiry, Gultech International Pte Ltd, entered into
an agreement with a related company, Anhui PrimedJeabrics Company Ltd, to acquire the
remaining 38.6% of the issued share capital of €&etlt(Suzhou) Electronics Co., Ltd (“GulSuzhou”)
that it did not already owned for a cash considemabf S$42,098,000 (RMB194,000,000). The
Group’s share of commitment in the acquisition B8&48,725,000 (RMB86,291,000). The acquisition
was completed in February 2016 and GulSuzhou hdbasthe same date became wholly owned by
GulTech.

Operating lease commitments - where the Groupgessor

The Groupentered into commercial property leases on itsstment property portfolio, consisting
commercial and industrial buildings under reamcellable operating lease agreements. The |
have varying terms, escalation clauses and rendglas. As athe end of the reporting period, th
non-cancellable leases had remaining lease ternietefeen one and eleven years (20dise anc
twelve years).

108



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

The future minimum lease receivables under-cancellable operating leases contracted for a¢td
of each reporting period but not recognised asvabkes were as follow

Group
201¢ 201¢
$'000 $'000
Within one yee 29,649 32,12(
After one year but not more than five ye 42,007 52,08¢
After five year: 2,561 3,24¢
74,217 87,45*

Operating lease commitmer- where the Group is a less

The Group leases office premises, warehouse, amkistvaps under n«-cancellable operating lea
agreements. The leases have varying terms andiaénghts. They are generally negotiated fo
term of 1 to 2 years and rentals are generallydfiiae the same periods. Payment recognised .
expense during the year we360,00( (201%: $343,00().

The future minimum lease payables under-cancellable opeting leases contracted for at the en
the reporting period but not recognised as liaedivere as follow

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Within one yee 368 45¢
After one year but not more than five ye 100 -
46€ 45¢

Derivative financial instrume

SP Corp, a listed subsidiary of the Group, utilisedrency derivatives to hedge significant ful
transactions and cash flows. At the end of thenteyy year, the total notional amount of outstagy
forward foleign exchange contracts to which the Group was dtiedhwere as follow:

Group
201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000
Foreign currency forward contra 15,000 18,90C

The change in the fair value of r-hedging currency derivative was innificant and hence i
amount was not charged to profit or
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31

32

Contingent liabilities

Group Company
201¢ 201t 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Guarantees given to banks in respect
of bank facilities utilised by subsidiaries - - 513,482 637,928

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recognised andial guarantee of $5,408,0@@anted to it:
associate, Pan-West, equivalent to the Group’sestiacorporate guarantees given to certamkbdo
secure credit facilities of Pan-West and its subsydNote 12]. As the liabilities had been recognis
there were no contingent liabilities as at the répg date.

Financial risk management

Financial risk management policies and objectives

The Group has documented financial risk managerpelities approved by the Board of Directors.
The policies consist of guidelines and rules taiie and manage periodically significant risks ttha
might affect the achievement of business objectivesgputs, projects or operating processes at the
Group, subsidiary or business unit level. Guidediaed rules are reviewed annually by the Group to
ensure that they remain relevant. The Group’salveisk management program seeks to minimise
potentially adverse effects on financial perfornentthe Group.

The Group’s risk management process is carriednotitree phases, i.e. identification and assessment
of risks, formulation and implementation of riskatment, and monitoring and reporting of risk peofi
The key risks relating to financial managementudel foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, icred
risk, use of derivative financial instruments amdesting cash in excess of short-term operational
requirement.

Factors behind financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety ofaincial risks such as market risk (including cucyen
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credigkriand liquidity risk. The Group seeks to minimise
potentially adverse effects arising from the unptadbility of the financial markets on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group’s financial instruments comprise loand borrowings, cash and liquid resources, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables tis# directly from its operations. The Group marsage
its exposure to currency and interest rate riskaubing a variety of techniques and instruments as
described in Note 32(a) and 32(b) to the finarsialements.
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Natural hedging is preferred by matching assets ledmlities of the same currency. Derivative
financial instruments are only used where it isassary to reduce the Group’s exposure to fluctoatio

in foreign exchange and interest rates or to comptia covenants imposed by banks. While these
financial instruments are subject to risk of chaimgmarket rates subsequent to their acquisitiooh s
changes are generally offset by opposite effectheritems being hedged. The Group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for specwatpurposes. The Group is not exposed to any
equity-price risk.

There has been no major change to the Group's esds these financial risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk. Markét eiposures are measured using sensitivity
analyses indicated in Note 32(a) and Note 32(lthedinancial statements.

Classification of financial instruments

The table below sets out the financial instrumanthe end of the reporting year:

Group Company
201¢€ 201¢ 201¢ 201t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including
cash and bank balances) 318,914 272,924 263,631 286,18C

Financial liabilities
Loans and payables — amortised cost 1,126,896 1,212,237 349,377 376,059

Financial guarantee contracts - - 16,236 6,722
1,126,89¢ 1,212,23 365612 382,78:
Derivative financial instruments 1,019 904 - -
1,127,91F 1,213,14. 365612 382,78:
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(@)

Currency risk

The Group’s subsidiaries operate mainly in SilmgepAustralia, China, Malaysia and Indonesia.
As for its associates, GulTech operates mainlyiim&and Singapore; Pan-West operates mainly
in Singapore and Malaysia. Entities in the Grougutarly transact in currencies other than their
respective functional currencies (“foreign curr@st) such as the Singapore dollar (“SGD”),
Australian dollar (“AUD”), United States dollar ('&D”) and Malaysian Ringgit ("MYR?”).
Currency risk arises when transactions are dendedria foreign currencies.

In addition, the Group is exposed to currencyndiaion risk on the net assets in foreign
operations mainly in Australia and China. As famassible, the Group relies on natural hedges
of matching foreign assets and liabilities of taeng currency.

SP Corp, a listed subsidiary of the Group, usewdrd foreign exchange contracts to protect
against the effect of volatility in foreign currgnexchange rates on foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities arising in thiemal course of business. SP Corp enters into
forward exchange contracts with maturities of I twelve months. Further details on the
forward exchange contracts are disclosed in Not 3@e financial statements.

The Group does not enter into currency optiond does not use forward foreign exchange
contracts for speculative trading purposes.
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Currency risk exposure

At the end of the reporting year, the carryingoants of significant monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies othigan the respective entities’ functional
currencies were as follows:

SGD usD AUD Others
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
At 31 December 2016
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 230 5,791 1 18
Trade and other receivables 40 568 - 95
27C 6,35¢ 1 113
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (19,226) (828) - (120)
Net financial (liabilities)/asset: (18.95¢) 5,531 1 (7)
Less:
Forward foreign exchange contracts 15,328 - - -
Net currency exposurt (3,628 5,531 1 (7
At 31 December 2015
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 176 7,227 1 63
Trade and other receivables 74 620 - 90
25( 7,84 1 153
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (19,248) (4,222) - -
Net financial (liabilities)/asset: (18,998 3,62¢ 1 15z
Less:
Forward foreign exchange contracts 18,900 - - -
Net currency exposurt (98) 3,62¢ 1 15%
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At the end of the reporting year, the carrying anmsuof significant monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in currencies ottien the Company’s functional currency

were as follows:

2016 2015

AUD MYR AUD MYR

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Company
Financial assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries - 131 - 489
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries (228) - (228) -
Net currency exposurt (228 131 (228 489

Sensitivity analysis for currency risk

The following table details the sensitivity to a%iUncrease/decrease in the relevant foreign
currencies against the functional currency of egrup entity. 10% is the sensitivity rate used

when reporting foreign currency risk internally key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably pos$iatege in foreign exchange rates. The

sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding fgimecurrency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the period end forO&clchange in foreign currency rates. The

sensitivity analysis includes external loans ad a&loans to foreign operations within the Group

where they gave rise to an impact on the Grou$tpr loss and/or equity.

If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10%iredahe functional currency of each group
entity, profit or loss may increase (decrease) by:

SGD UsD AUD Others
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
Profit or loss 363 37 (553) (363) - (1) 1 (15)
Company
Profit or loss - - - - 23 23 (13) (49)
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(b)

The strengthening of the relevant foreign curyeagainst the functional currency of each group
entity at the end of the reporting year would hiaad the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the thagisll other variables remain constant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that fetwash flows of a financial instrument may
fluctuate because of changes in interest ratdseimtarket. Fair value interest rate risk is tls& ri
that the fair value of a financial instrument mhyctuate due to such changes.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate @isses mainly from bank borrowings. The
Group aims to optimise net interest cost and taiged/olatility in the finance cost. The Group
borrows mainly variable rate debts with varyinguess. A summary of the Group’s interest-
bearing financial instruments is disclosed in N82éd) to these financial statements.

Other than those disclosed below, the Group do¢suse derivative financial instruments to
hedge fluctuations in interest rates for its bolirms.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

The sensitivity analysis below is based on the swm® to interest rates for non-derivative

instruments at the end of the reporting year arslirass that the change took place at the
beginning of the financial year and was held consthroughout the reporting year. The

magnitude represents the Group’s assessment olikélg movement in interest rates under

normal economic conditions.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higihdower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax would deseear increase by $9,178,000 (2015: decrease or
increase by $9,610,000).

The Company’s profit or loss was not affected bgraes in interest rates as the Company did
not have any borrowings or inter-company loans dinatat variable rates.
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(c)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterpawiyl default on its contractual obligations resndi

in financial loss to the Group. The Group has &elb@ policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties as a mean of mitigating the ristnaincial loss from such defaults. Credit risk on
cash and bank balances and derivative financigiument is limited as these balances are placed
with or transacted with institutions of repute. TG®up manages these risks by monitoring credit
worthiness and limiting the aggregate use to adyidual counterparty. The Group does not
expect to incur material credit losses on its feiahinstruments.

There was no significant concentration of credk with respect to trade receivables at the dnd o
the reporting year because of the Group’s large baumof customers who are in turn
geographically dispersed and from a fairly divespectrum of industries. The carrying amount
of financial assets recorded in the financial statets, grossed up for any allowances for losses,
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to cristtitwithout taking into account of the value
of any collateral obtained and the guarantees gbyethe Group to banks in respect of bank
facilities utilised by an associate.

The credit risk for trade receivables after alloa@for doubtful receivables was as follows:

Group
201¢ 201¢
$'000 $'000

By geographical area
Singapore 100,126 76,011
Australia 4,821 3,815
China 3,903 4,221
Malaysia 2,330 2,847
Indonesia 8,323 12,970
USA 126 238
Other ASEAN countries 1 53
Others 616 331

120,246 100,48t
By type of customers
Related parties 12,209 7,768
Non-related parties 108,037 92,718

120,246 100,48t
By industry sector
Property 73,863 49,586
Hotel 5,236 4,472
Industrial services 41,147 46,428

120,246 100,48t
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(d) Liquidity risk
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintainindfisient cash and borrowings with different
tenures. Due to the dynamic nature of the busésesse Group is in, the Group aims at
maintaining flexibility in funding and keeping adexje committed credit facilities available.

Analysis for liguidity and interest risk - non-deative financial liabilities

The following tables detail the effective annuaferest rates and the remaining contractual
maturity for non-derivative financial liabilitieg the end of the reporting year.

The tables have been drawn up based on the oodisd cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group and Companybe required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. The adjgstt column represents possible future cash
flow attributable to the instruments included ie timaturity analysis which is not included in the
carrying amount of the financial liabilities on th&atements of financial position.

On
demand
Effective or less Within Within Over
interest than 1 lto2 2to5 5
rate year years years years Adjustment Total
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
31 December 2016
Non-interest bearing - 105,641 462 - - - 106,103
Fixed interest rate
instruments 4.5 3,600 86,420 - - (10,458) 79,562
Variable interest rate
instruments 1.7-28 14,598 668,322 282,697 4,982 (29,368) 941,231

123,839 755,204 282,697 4,982 (39,826) 1,126,896

31 December 2015

Non-interest bearing - 105,541 362 - - - 105,903

Fixed interest rate

instruments 45 3,600 3,600 86,420 - (14,216) 79,404

Variable interest rate

instruments 1.7-3.4 443,871 7,812 598,688 6,532 (29,973) 1,026,930
553,012 11,774 685,108 6,532 (44,189) 1,212,237
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On
demand
Effective orless  Within Within Over
interest than 1 1to2 2to5 5
rate year years years years Adjustment Total
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Company
31 December 2016
Non-interest bearing - 269,815 - - - - 269,815
Fixed interest rate
instruments 4.5 3,600 86,420 - - (10,458) 79,562
Financial guarantee
contracts - 513,482 - - (497,246) 16,236
786,897 86,420 - - (507,704) 365,613
31 December 2015
Non-interest bearing - 296,65E - - - - 296,65¢
Fixed interest rate
instruments 45 3,600 3,600 86,420 - (14,216) 79,404
Financial guarantee
contracts - 637,928 - - - (631,206) 6,722
938,183 3,600 86,420 - (645,422) 382,781

At the end of the reporting year, the maximum amdhat the Company could be forced to settle
under the financial guarantee contracts if the gubaranteed amounts were claimed by the
counterparty to the various guarantees, was $523@8 (2015: $637,928,000). The earliest
time that a guarantee could be called is as and Wieeguarantee is claimed by the counterparty.

As at the end of the reporting year, the Grotgtal obligation on guarantees in connection with
Pan-West's bank facilities amounted to $5,408,a%: $5,853,000). The earliest time that a
guarantee could be called is as and when the gearénclaimed by the counterparty.

Analysis for liguidity and interest risk - non-deative financial assets

The following tables detail the effective annirdérest rates and the expected maturity for non-
derivative financial assets at the end of the riapgpyear. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual maturities of tharicial assets including interest that will be
earned on those assets except where the Group@@btpany anticipate that the cash flow will
occur in a different year. The adjustment colurepresents the possible future cash flows
attributable to the instrument included in the miiuanalysis which are not included in the
carrying amount of the financial assets on theestants of financial position.
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On
demand
Effective or less Within Within Over
interest than 1 lto2 2to5 5
rate year years years years Adjustment Total
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
31 December 2016
Non-interest bearing - 156,214 113 2,901 9 - 159,237
Variable interest rate
instruments 0.1-0.3 23,406 - - - (16) 23,390
Fixed interest rate
instruments 0.2-54 74,072 31,275 31,275 - (335) 136,287
253,692 31,388 34,176 9 (351) 318,914
31 December 2015
Non-interest bearing - 134,875 736 - 10 - 135,621
Variable interest rate
instruments 0.1-0.3 65,946 - - - 9) 65,937
Fixed interest rate
instruments 0.3-4.8 39,064 - 32,550 - (248) 71,366
239,885 736 32,550 10 (257) 272,924
Company
31 December 2016
Non-interest bearing 263,631 - - - - 263,631
31 December 2015
Non-interest bearing - 286,180 - - - - 286,180

Analysis for liquidity risk - derivative financiatstruments

The following table details a liquidity analy$a derivative financial instruments the Group had
entered into at the end of the reporting year. Tdlde has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted net cash outflows on the derivatigtriments that settle on a net basis and the
undiscounted gross inflows on those derivativesréguire gross settlement.
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(€)

Group

31 December 2016
Gross settled:
Foreign exchange
forward contracts

31 December 2015
Gross settled:
Foreign exchange
forward contracts

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabities

On
demand
or less Within Within Over
than 1 lto2 2to5 5
year years years years Adjustment Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(327) (327)
271 271

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalératde and other receivables and payables,
provisions and other liabilities approximated threspective fair values due to their relative short

term maturity.

The fair values of financial assets and finanicgdilities are determined as follows:

» the fair value of financial assets and finahdiabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are determiméureference to quoted market prices;

« the fair value of other financial assets andafficial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with rgdlgeaccepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices fromeokable current market transactions and
dealer quotes for similar instruments; and

< the fair value of derivative instruments arécolated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, discounted cash flow analysiséd, based on the applicable yield curve of
the duration of the instruments for non-optionativdgives, and option pricing models for

optional derivatives.

The fair value of other classes of financial &ssad liabilities are disclosed in the respective
notes to the financial statements. The Group ifilesdair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of theuitspused in making the measurements. The fair

value hierarchy has the following levels:
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(f)

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in activarkats for identical assets or liabilities;

» Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices includethin Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as priyes indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability thateanot based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

At the end of each reporting year, the GroupthedCompany’s interest rate swap was measured
based on Level 2. The valuation technique andirayt is future cash flows which are estimated
based on forward interest rates (from observaldkel yiurves at the end of the reporting year) and
contract interest rates, discounted at a raterdfigcts the credit risk of various counterparties.

Capital risk

In managing capital, the Group’s objectives aresafeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain an optimal capital strectso as to provide appropriate returns to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholdeosigin pricing its products and services at levels
commensurate with the level of risks it is exposed

The capital structure of the Group consists ah®and borrowings disclosed in Note 13, issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings disclosibies 18 and 19 to the financial statements. In
order to maintain or achieve an optimal capitalctire, the Group may issue new shares, obtain
new borrowings, sell assets to reduce borrowingg,qu adjust the amount of dividend payment

or return capital to shareholders. The Group’s alvestrategy remains unchanged from the prior

years.

The Group monitors capital risks through meagutive Group’s gross gearing and net gearing.
The Group’s gross gearing is calculated as totalolongs divided by total equity, whilst net
gearing is calculated as net borrowings divideddvgl equity. Net borrowings are calculated as
total borrowings as disclosed in Note 13, less @amshbank balances as disclosed in Note 5 to the
financial statements.

Group

2016 2015

$'000 $'000
Total borrowings 1,020,793 1,106,33¢
Total equity 930,456 887,457
Gross gearing (times) 1.10 1.25
Net borrowings 857,105 964,617
Total equity 930,456 887,457
Net gearing (times) 0.92 1.09
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33  Listing of significant subsidiaries
Information relating to the significant subsidexiis disclosed as below:

Effective
Country of  equity interest
incorporation/ & voting

Name of company Note Principal activities  establishment power held by
the Group
201¢ 201t
% %
Significant subsidiaries directly held by the Compa
Asiaview Properties Pte Ltd Property investment Singapore 100 100
Asplenium Land Pte. Ltd. Property developmentSingapore 100 100
Clerodendrum Land Pte. Ltd. Property developmen&ingapore 100 100
Dillenia Land Pte. Ltd. Property development Singapore 100 100
Oxley Development Pte Ltd Property investment  ing&pore 100 100
SP Corporation Limited Investment holding Singgp 80.2 80.2
Superluck Properties Pte Ltd Property investmen Singapore 100 100

Significant subsidiaries indirectly held by the Gamy

39 Robinson Road Pte. Ltd. Property investment Singapore 100 100

Grand Hotel Group (i) Property investment Australia 100 100

Habitat Properties (Shanghai) Ltd. (i) Property development  China 100 100

Shelford Properties Pte Ltd Property development Singapore 100 100

SP Resources International Pte. Ltd. Trading of industrial Singapore 80.2 80.2
products

All subsidiaries in Singapore are audited by Ciedo& Touche LLP, Singapore.
Note

(i)  Audited by overseas practices of Deloitte Touchlerfiatsu Limited.
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34  Listing of significant associates

Associates are those in which the Group has sggmfiinfluence, but not control in the operatingl
financial policy decisions.

Information relating to the significant associatedisclosed as below:

Effective

Country equity interest

of & voting

Name of company Note Principal activities incorporation  power held by
the Group

2016 2015
% %

Gul Technologies Singapore (i) Manufacture Singapore 445 44.5

Pte. Ltd. of printed

circuit boards
Note

(i)  Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singapore.
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